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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 B &1 i 8 5 #f

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2014, the Group's turnover (including the discontinued
operations) increased by 38% to approximately HK$6.3 billion
while gross profit (including the discontinued operations)
increased by 14% to approximately HK$167 million,
compared to the same period last year. During the period,
steel trading and property investment businesses recorded a
profit of HK$118 million. Due to the impairment losses on
property and intangible assets of the Shandong Magnetite
Iron Ore Mine and the fair value losses on iron ore commodity
swap contracts of approximately HK$416 million, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$279 million.

Steel Trading

In view of slim margins, a slump in steel prices, and severe
over-capacity as well as over-supply, the PRC steel industry
had a difficult year in 2014. As a result of a negative growth
rate in the PRC’s real estate industry and a drop in demand
from the machinery, automobile, shipbuilding and other
industries, domestic steel prices dropped steeper than in
overseas markets where demand is picking up, especially
in North American and Asian markets. Prices of particular
products in China fell by as much as 30% during the year.
Iron ore prices also showed significant volatility. Capacity
expansion from Australia and Brazil’s major iron mines flooded
the market with low-cost iron ore, and non-mainstream mines
were gradually closed, which resulted in a drop of iron ore
prices by 50% from its yearly high. Steel and iron ore prices
in the fourth quarter even plunged below the 2008 financial
crisis lows.

As raw material prices such as iron ore and coke continue
to drop, steel enterprises in the PRC have streamlined their
operations with the aim of lowering costs. In addition to the
continued depreciation of RMB, the competitiveness of PRC’s
steel products in overseas markets has been strengthened.
Therefore, the export of raw materials became a vital channel
to ease excessive capacity. China’s steel exports reached a
record high 93 million tons in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 B &1 i 5 53 #f

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Trading (continued)

In response to recent market changes, the Group took
advantage of opportunities arising from lower raw material
prices compared to those in overseas markets and pushed
ahead with its export operations, which generated higher
revenues than in previous years. In terms of resources
procurement, the Group provided financing support to
suppliers in order to obtain discounted prices and maintain
stable supplies. On the sales front, the Group reinforced credit
insurance arrangements and provided value-added financing
services to its clients in order to maintain stable sales orders.
The Group also focused its marketing strategies on adjusting
the export product mix to cater to the demands of target
markets, resulting in market shares of over 20% in particular
countries and regions.

In view of current tight market competition and low gross
profit margins, the Group is committed to exploring the
North American market where the operating system is more
complicated but profit margins are higher. During the period
under review, the Group obtained marketing rights of certain
products for North American market from particular suppliers,
thus enhancing the competitive strengths of the Group’s
products in the market.

Despite exports of steel products in the PRC maintaining a
leading position in the global commodity market, the Group
further expanded its footprint in Eurasian markets in order to
diversify its operations, minimising the risks brought about by
changes in export policies due to over-reliance on particular
regions.

In conclusion, although steel prices continued to drop during
the period under review, the Group broke new records for
sales volume and successfully explored markets with higher
returns.

Looking ahead to 2015, the pace of global economic recovery
is still uncertain and uneven across various economic systems.
The US economy is recovering steadily while the Eurozone’s
economy continues to slow further. Japan remains burdened
with a sluggish recovery from recession and Russia’s economy
is expected to fall into recession while the economic picture in
the PRC is still facing downside risks. Although downstream
industries may have different degrees of growth, the PRC
economy overall is not likely to stumble in the near term. Steel
prices are expected to remain at low levels while the overall
market remains weak. Expansion of domestic steel production
is widely anticipated to be muted which may improve the
current over-supply situation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 B &1 i 8 5 #f

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Trading (continued)

China’s export policy was revised last year by replacing the
export tax rebate on boron-added steel with chromium-added
steel. This policy change will not have a significant impact on
the Group's overall export business.

The domestic demand outlook looks brighter as the new
government session announced a clearer direction on
economic restructuring and set a 7 to 7.5% economic growth
target for 2015, which has been well received by the market.
Achieving steady growth remains the primary goal for future
development while avoiding fluctuations in the economy.
The National Development and Reform Commission approved
more than RMB1,200 billion on a total of 420 infrastructure
investment projects such as railways and airports, which are
expected to roll out in mid-2015. These major investment
projects will stimulate steel demand and are seen as highly
favorable to the steel industry.

The total storage of iron ore at major ports in the PRC
experienced a slight decline for consecutive months after
reaching a record high of 110 million tons. By the end of
December, port storage dropped to 98.24 million tons and
is expected to maintain supplies at around 98 million tons
through 2015. Reduction in iron ore inventory will help
stabilise the price of iron ore and steel in the short run.
However, the over-supply of iron ore looks set to continue
and iron ore prices will remain at low levels.

Given the aforementioned factors, the Group believes that
2015 will be another tough year with a challenging steel trade
environment compared with previous years. Consequently,
the Group will respond in a timely fashion to changing market
conditions in order to exploit all viable procurement and
marketing opportunities while utilising different marketing
platforms and operating prudently to achieve better results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 B &1 i 5 53 #f

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Processing

The Group's steel processing operations improved in 2014
with further narrowed losses. Due to weak demand in
international markets, fierce price competition and slashed
orders, inventory is now under control and gross profit per
ton has increased. In addition, the proportion of sales in terms
of RMB has risen along with the improving economy.

In 2015, the Group will adopt strict cost controls and
implement energy reduction measures while enhancing
its competitive strengths in the market. We shall strive to
increase sales orders, boost sales volume and raise gross profit
per ton in order to maximise profits.

Commercial Property Investment and Master Leasing Operation

On 31 October 2014, the Group held a general meeting for
passing resolution(s) to dispose the Yangzhou Times Square, a
large scale shopping centre, to China Land Assets Limited, an
associated company of the Company. This transaction is still
in progress. In 2014, the Yangzhou Times Square recorded
satisfactory rental income and was operating smoothly.

Mineral Resources

The PRC market recorded a drastic reduction on iron
concentrates price of more than 40% in 2014, the year-end
price was even lower than the projected production cost of
the Group’s Shandong Magnetite Iron Ore Mine and was
expected not to rebound significantly in the near future. As a
result, it recorded impairment losses of approximately HK$370
million on the Group's related assets such as mining rights and
properties at the Shandong Magnetite Iron Ore Mine pursuant
to the valuation reports conducted by an independent valuer,
resulting in a nearly full write-off of the Group’s investment
in the mineral resources business. However, these impairment
losses did not involve any cash flow. There was no production
nor sales during the year.

In this coming year, the Group will implement sound
operational strategies and strive to boost the operating
revenue of its core businesses with the aim of achieving
profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 B &1 if B 9

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total equity of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$359 million mainly for the impairment losses on property
and intangible assets. However, such impairment losses had
no impact on the Group’s liquidity. The Group’s gearing
ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings net of total cash and cash
equivalents to total equity, was 0.45 (2013: 0.42) and the
current ratio, as a ratio of current assets to current liabilities,
was 1.69 (2013: 1.46) at 31 December 2014.

The total borrowings of the Group decreased to approximately

BERBERMERR

FTEAAMEMBREEERBEL  A£H
BRI #3598 T o AR RE
%a%”ﬂkﬁlz/;&béfilﬂf%?‘% o R
—ME+-A=+—0 AEENEE
ttf(%@ﬁm?uﬁf,ﬁ@fﬁi&fi SEMER
Eﬁi,ﬁ@%ﬁnﬁtb)ﬁo.%(_;*:i 1 0.42)
RSB E(RBEERRSHEEMAL) A
1.69(ZF—=%%:1.46) °

R=B-mET=A=t-R ARE2E

HK$817 million (2013: HK$919 million) as at 31 December EXRENBEIN7TETL(ZZE—=4F :
2014 and their maturity profile as agreed with the lenders o 19187T) - Eﬁif)f ONGE Pl HHZID
was as follows: T:
2014
—E—QmE
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total 2013
5 2#1E
BERY BEEW By =%
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
A¥EHET BYEHERT BYEERT ABEBAET
Within one year —&FR 475 41 516 583
Between one and two years —ZZFRK 9 33 42 32
Between two and five years “ERFNA 85 63 148 159
Over five years BRRF 65 46 111 145
634 183 817 919
The Group’s borrowings were denominated in US Dollar, Euro, AEBEFIUET Bt - ARBREBETLAE
Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged interest BB - NS EENE -
at prevailing market rates.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE S EE 52 45 R B

The Group’s receipts, payments, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in US Dollar, Euro, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group considers that its exposure
to exchange rate risk is modest except for Euro in which
less than 10% of the Group’s receipts and payments were
denominated for 2014. To minimise the exchange rate risk,
forward exchange contracts are used when required, in
particular for Euro.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 B &1 & B 9

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following
outstanding corporate guarantees:

LFiRE

R-ZE—NE+=-—A=+—H8  KEFHMN
TARMEEE R BER

2014 2013
—2—MmF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BEFT
Guarantees for general banking facilities AL ATRITHERE
and loan facilities granted to associates  FEIEIEH 2 R 489,285 11,160
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage ASBEYEBEELIEE
facilities granted to the buyers of the AR ITIER Z &R
Group's properties 95 97
489,380 11,257
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES BRAR
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had contingent liabilites R Z=ZF —WF+=-A=+—8 - Zg ES
relating to Mainland China land appreciation tax amounted to = & B & . THBEHRNIRABED
approximately HK$30,954,000 (2013: HK$31,747,000). 75 30,954,000 (=22 —=F : B

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no capital
commitments contracted but not provided (2013: Nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings
with a net book amount of approximately HK$75,883,000
(2013: HK$91,619,000); (ii) a motor vehicle with a net book
amount of approximately HK$168,000 (2013: HK$679,000);
(iii) certain short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,716,000 (2013: HK$22,657,000); (iv) certain assets of
disposal group classified as held for sale of approximately
HK$1,057,752,000 (2013: Nil); and (v) certain bills and
accounts receivable of approximately HK$285,979,000 (2013:
Nil).

STAFF

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 437 staff.
Staff remuneration packages are structured and reviewed
by reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Group also provides other staff benefits which include year
end double pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may also be
granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as
and when required.

31,747,0007T) °
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MR. CHAN SHING, AGED 59
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing
Director in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience
in international trading of metal, the processing and
manufacturing of related products, the management
of industrial enterprises, the investment in industrial
and commercial properties, and corporate planning and
management. Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN.

MR. SIT HOI TUNG, AGED 49
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy
General Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill
Resources Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export
bills operation for metal trading. He graduated from the
Finance Department of Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had
worked for banking sector and metal trading companies and
has over 20 years of experience in international metal trading
and import/export bills operation.

MS. LAU TING, AGED 58
Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in
1998. Ms. LAU has over 20 years of experience in business
development and strategic planning, project investment and
financial management. She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing.
Ms. LAU is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

MS. TUNG PUI SHAN, VIRGINIA, AGED 48
Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive
Director. Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment
Division. She holds a bachelor's degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

MR. KWOK WAI LAM, AGED 52
Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive
Director. He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Financial Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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MR. SHAM KAI MAN, AGED 48
Executive Director

Mr. SHAM joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director
of Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in-
charge of the Group’s steel and mineral trading business. Mr.
SHAM graduated from The University of Hong Kong and, prior
to joining the Group, had worked for a multinational steel
trading company for 7 years. He has over 19 years extensive
experience in steel trading and gains good international
connections.

MR. CUlI SHU MING, AGED 77
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. CUI graduated from People's University
of China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China,
Jiangsu branch, the Executive Director of The National
Commercial Bank, Ltd. and the General Manager of its
Hong Kong branch, a Director and the Executive Vice
President of The Ka Wah Bank Ltd.. Mr. CUIl is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, both
are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 40 years of
experience in international finance and corporate planning
and management.

MR. HUANG SHENGLAN, AGED 63
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was
an Executive Director and the Deputy Governor of China
Everbright Bank, Head Office, an Executive Director and the
General Manager of China Everbright Technology Limited and
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Chongging Road &
Bridge Co. Ltd. and Symphony Holdings Limited. Mr. HUANG
holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong Normal University and
in International Economics from Huadong Normal University
and a certificate in International Economic Law from Xiamen
University and in Advanced Management Programme from
the Business School of Harvard University, USA. Mr. HUANG
is an Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited and a Non-Executive Director of China
Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited.
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MR. CHAN MING FAI, AGED 53
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in October 2011. He is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of City Green Holdings Limited primarily responsible
for the formulation and execution of the group’s strategy.
Prior to that, Mr. CHAN was the Chief Executive Officer of
Full Seas Technology Group and the President of Dandelion
Capital Group, which is a private financial advisory company.
He has over twenty years of experience in investment banking
and asset management. Mr. CHAN had worked for Jardine
Fleming Investment Management with a major responsibility
to market unit trusts and asset management products in
Hong Kong and subsequently in various Asian markets, and
was particularly instrumental in the establishment of Jardine
Fleming’s investment trust operation in Japan, Korea and
Indonesia. Mr. CHAN also cofounded the KGI Group, which
is a pan-Asian investment bank with shareholders including
major investors and institutions in Asia, where he was the
head of the asset management operation which managed
about USD400 million in hedge funds and other portfolios,
and was also a member of the management committee of
KGI Group. Mr. CHAN received a bachelor’'s degree in Social
Sciences with major in Economics from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

MR. CHIANG BUN, AGED 45
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHIANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in December 2012. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong
and a LL.B. from Peking University. Mr. CHIANG is also a
Chartered Financial Analyst charter holder. Mr. CHIANG has
held senior roles in various international banks and financial
institutions, primarily responsible for structured debt and/or
equity financing and was an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Sunlink International Holdings Limited. Mr.
CHIANG has extensive experience in the banking and finance
industry.
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The board of Directors of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) presents to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
pages 43 and 44.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2014 are set out in the balance sheets on

pages 41 and 42.

The Group’s cash flows are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 48 and 49.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are steel trading, steel
processing, mineral resources exploration and development
and commercial property investment.

The Group's segment results for the year and other segment
information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's
major suppliers are as follows:

%
— the largest supplier 9
— five largest suppliers combined 33

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s major
customers are as follows:

%
— the largest customer 13
— five largest customers combined 29

None of the Directors, their respective close associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the above suppliers or customers at any time during
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held for sale by the Group as at
31 December 2014 are set out on page 171.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2014 are set out in notes 10
and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans (excluding the bank
loans included in liabilities of disposal group classified as held
for sale) are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and Euro. As at 31 December
2014, around 99% of the Group’s bank loans were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank
loans bear interest at prevailing market rates.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out
in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to
HK$228,004,000 (2013: HK$275,164,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction
against the granting of such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 8 June 2011 (the “Option Scheme”), certain options were
granted to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company.
Details of which are set out as follows:

() Summary of terms of the Option Scheme
(i)  Purpose of the Option Scheme

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to Participants (as stated in
paragraph (ii)) for the contribution to the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and other personnel that are
valuable to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

n

Summary of terms of the Option Scheme (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Participants

Any individual being an employee (whether full-
time or part-time), officer, buying agent, selling
agent, consultant, sales representative or marketing
representative of, or supplier or provider of goods or
services to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
including any executive or non-executive director of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, who satisfies
the criteria set out in the Option Scheme.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of the Company and/or any
subsidiary must not exceed 30 per cent. of the
number of issued shares from time to time. The
total number of shares available for issue under
the Option Scheme as at the date of this report is
487,535,968 shares, representing approximately
10.63 per cent. of the issued share capital of the
Company as of that date.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant in
any 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant for such options would
exceed 1 per cent. of the number of shares in issue as
at the proposed date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

n

Summary of terms of the Option Scheme (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme at any time during a
period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by
the Board to the grantee, such period to commence
on the date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day of the
said period. Under the Option Scheme, the Board
may, at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with
the terms of the Option Scheme on acceptance of
the grant of an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the
options to be granted under the Option Scheme
will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to a Participant at the time the grant of
the options is made to (and subject to acceptance
by) the Participant and will be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of the grant (subject to acceptance) of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

The life of the Option Scheme

The Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from 8 June
2011, after which period no further options will
be granted nor accepted but the provisions of the
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(I) Movements of share options under the Option

MERR R R (=)

() MEBiER BN T ZMARIER R :

Scheme:
Exercise period Number of share options
fHEs RREBOBA
outstanding granted exercised cancelled lapsed  outstanding
Date of  Exercise price asat during during during during asat
grant per share from until 01/01/2014 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2014
RZ3-BE 3-mE
-R-B%& +ZA=+-R
BIHAN BRIER # E BERTHE it Wi FER FMEN RRK{TE
HKS (Notes)
L (i)
(i)  Directors

£
CHAN Shing 071112014 03 0171212014 301172016 = 2,250,000 = - - 2,250,000
B4 0171212015 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
SIT Hoi Tung 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
BiER 0171272015 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
LAU Ting 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
3 01122015 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
Ei 0171212015 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
KWOK Wai Lam 071172014 03 0171212014 301172016 = 11,000,000 = - - 11,000,000
BER 0171272015 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
SHAM Kai Man 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
i 0171212015 301172016 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
CUI Shu Ming 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
EEH 0171212015 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
HUANG Shenglan 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
ERE 0171212015 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
CHAN Ming Fai 071112014 03 0171212014 301172016 = 2,250,000 = - - 2,250,000
Rz 0171272015 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
CHIANG Bun 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
Feai 0171272015 301172016 - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000

(i) Continuous contract 0711172014 03 0171212014 301172016 - 81,150,000 - - - 81,150,000

employees 0171212015 301172016 - 81,150,000 - - - 81,150,000
EfahRR
Total:
e - 277,300,000 - - - 277,300,000

Notes: Hist -

1. The options are recognised as expenses in the financial statements 1. BRESRBEMBHREERFE2RNUH
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 2. Wr TERAETHIEE - z]xir‘ﬁq?*,‘jjﬁgﬁx
Other details of the value of options granted during the year and HOEEREEERENS ST BESE SR
the accounting policy adopted for the share options are set out HIR G A EREN 21 %2, 24 3
in notes 21 and 2.24 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

2. The closing price per share of the Company on 7 November 2014, 2. T—FE+— AL H (B LB RRE R

being the date of grant of the above share options, is HK$0.3.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Mr. YANG Dawei (resigned on 12 September 2014)

Mr. ZHU Ming (appointed on 16 April 2014 and
resigned on 24 July 2014)

Mr. YIN Mark (resigned on 12 March 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming
Mr. HUANG Shenglan
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai
Mr. CHIANG Bun

In accordance with bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Messrs. LAU Ting, TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia and
HUANG Shenglan shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out on pages 10 to 12.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company (including
those interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have interests and short positions under the
provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

EFERITHERBREN  HERERHR
REEhEATHEZR XS

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H ' REXAF
BRESF MBS ([E5 BB ) H
352K ERTHREFNECMAE - s
WE LM BEITAESETESFRZNIEEST
APBAARR MBI FT - ARRBERERIT
BAHENARAHEEEBZE(EER
787 N B E RGBS XVER) Bt ~ AERE AR Ko
BHFETHEARIRRESF M RIIER S
BAENERNAR - IR

F LTI R R AR5

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EEREORIERERNEE
Personal Family Corporate
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total
EElR BEAES RikigEsR AFER e
CHAN Shing 206,574,521 (L) 108,542,601 (L) 1,139,728,149 (L) 1,454,845,271 (L)
B 355, (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(het1) (Hat12) (Hizt3%4) (Hzt4)
SIT Hoi Tung 26,413,869 (L) - - 26,413,869 (L)
HER (Note 5)
(Hi7£5)
LAU Ting 108,542,601 (L) 206,574,521 (L) 1,139,728,149 (L) 1,454,845,271 (L)
2t (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 6) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Hat1) (Hat1k6) (Hiz3k4) (Hiz4)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 43,725,226 (L) 110,000 (L) 7,104,000 (L) 50,939,226 (L)
= {3 (Note 5) (Note 7)
(#7:25) (H1i27)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND EERTHREZMNEG - ARG R
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES EHEhEFHESRAE(E)
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company ZAFIRNREREBHIES(Z)
(continued)

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EEREGRAREKSE

Approximate

percentage in

the Company's

Personal Family Corporate issued share

Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total capital

SR F 3N

ERTERSE

EFENER BARE KRS AFEE “ay Bizkk

KWOK Wai Lam 22,000,000 (L) - - 22,000,000 (L) 0.48% (L)
BER (Note 5)
(Hi7t5)

SHAM Kai Man 22,000,000 (L) - - 22,000,000 (L) 0.48% (L)
LR (Note 5)
(Hizt5)

CUI Shu Ming 4,500,000 (L) - - 4,500,000 (L) 0.10% (L)
EEP (Note 1)
(Hist1)

HUANG Shenglan 4,500,000 (L) - - 4,500,000 (L) 0.10% (L)
ABE (Note 1)
(Hizt1)

CHAN Ming Fai 4,500,000 (L) - - 4,500,000 (L) 0.10% (L)
FREAE (Note 1)
(Hrzt1)

CHIANG Bun 4,500,000 (L) - - 4,500,000 (L) 0.10% (L)
B (Note 1)
(Hist1)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. Among these interests, 4,500,000 underlying shares were share options.

2. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

3. 812,361,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory Add"”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (“Favor King”).
211,900,848 shares were held by Strong Purpose Corporation (“Strong
Purpose”). Favor King and Strong Purpose are wholly-owned by Mr.
CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. 115,465,965 shares were held by Hang
Sing Overseas Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Orient Strength
Limited (a company which is wholly-owned by Ms. LAU Ting).

4. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting are
deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures referred to the
same shares.

5. Among these interests, 22,000,000 underlying shares were share options.

6. These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of Ms. LAU
Ting.

7. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants Limited, a
company which is wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

8. The letter “L” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short
position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had,
or were deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, according to the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

FERFREG RAMKMRERD
EERikE

R-ZZ—MFE+_A=+—H  REKXRQF]
RIREF LG RPIEI36GMRERATH
FZBLMAE U TAL(RRAREER
TTEABERR N ) AR R R B An R AR BE A £ P
BAREDIORR

B 17 R AERR AR {7

Approximate

Number of
ordinary shares &

percentage in the
Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Nature of interest underlying shares share capital Note
HERRRDR HiEF LT
KRB R E HEARGHE ERITRFEMHL Wit
Favor King Corporate 812,361,336 (L) 17.71% (L) 1
A7)
Notes: Mt

1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-
owned by Favor King. Favor King is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting.

2. The letter “L” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short
position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

1. Sz dFavor King2 E# B # A F]Glory Add
A - Rt REIEZ T2 EHEAFavor King ©

2. L] RRgFa + [S] Rij%kRE -
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DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY AND PROVISION
OF GUARANTEE FOR FINANCING OF AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

On 18 August 2014, the Company, Charm Best Investments
Inc. ("Charm Best”) and China Land Assets Limited (“China
Land Assets”), an associated company of the Company,
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement (as
amended and supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 19 August 2014) (the “Disposal Agreement”), pursuant
to which (i) the Company conditionally agreed to dispose
and China Land Assets conditionally agreed to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Burwill China Portfolio Limited
(the “Target Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, at a consideration of RMB199,780,000 (the
“Disposal”), and (ii) Charm Best conditionally agreed to
dispose and China Land Assets conditionally agreed to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Dynamic Gain Holding
Limited at a consideration of RMB60,000,000 (the “Charm
Best’s Disposal”).

The net proceeds of the Disposal are estimated to be
approximately RMB198,180,000. As at the date of this report,
the Company received cash payment of RMB55,000,000.

Certain conditions precedent in respect of the Disposal
have not been satisfied as at the date of this report. Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Target Company (together
with its subsidiaries) will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company and become an associated company of the
Company. The Target Company will be indirectly held as to
45% by the Company and 55% by Charm Best through China
Land Assets after completion of the Disposal and the Charm
Best’s Disposal.

In connection with the Disposal, the Company entered into
two guarantee agreements (the “Guarantee Agreement”)
in favour of AR AIRITIRN AR AT to provide guarantee
(the “Guarantee”) up to the extent of RMB382.5 million,
being 45% of the maximum amount of the proposed loans of
RMB850 million granted/to be granted to #/&7G% (35) AR
/A\], an associated company of the Company.

The Disposal and the Guarantee constituted a very substantial
disposal and major transaction for the Company respectively
and were therefore subject to the reporting, announcement
and the Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY AND PROVISION
OF GUARANTEE FOR FINANCING OF AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY (continued)

The ordinary resolutions to approve the Disposal Agreement
and the Guarantee Agreement were duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 31 October 2014.

Details of the Disposal and the Guarantee were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 15 October 2014.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES — SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT EXPIRED

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 16 October
2013 (the “Subscription Agreement”) entered into among the
Company, Lucky Creation Limited (the “Subscriber”) and Mr.
CHAN Wing Kwai, the Subscriber’s guarantor, the Subscriber
agreed to subscribe for within the subscription period and
the Company agreed to issue and allot an aggregate of
825,600,000 new ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Subscription Share(s)”) at a price of HK$0.26 each under the
general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company
by its shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 June 2013 (the “Subscription”). The
closing price per share of the Company on 16 October 2013,
being the date of the Subscription Agreement, as quoted
on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.26. Net proceeds of
approximately HK$215 million were expected to be used for
general working capital purposes.

The Company had not received a subscription notice from the
Subscriber within the specified period. As no agreement on
the renewal of subscription in new shares of the Company
could be reached, the Company decided and announced
on 27 June 2014 to terminate the negotiation with the
Subscriber.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes of the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company with no specific
term of office or for an initial term of three years (subject to
individual contract) from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter, until terminated by not less than one to
six months (subject to individual contract) notice in writing
served by either party on the other. Each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years which is renewable for another three years and can be
terminated by notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note
15 of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the
Company’s Directors or members of its management had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

OTHER INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Starting from1 April 2015, the annual salaries of each
of Messrs. CHAN Shing, SIT Hoi Tung, TUNG Pui Shan,
Virginia, KWOK Wai Lam and SHAM Kai Man, Executive
Directors of the Company, will be increased by an average of
approximately 5.54%.

The Directors’ fee of Messrs, CUI Shu Ming, HUANG Shenglan,
CHAN Ming Fai and CHIANG Bun, Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, will be changed to HK$36,100,
HK$25,800, HK$25,800 and HK$15,500 respectively per
month from 1 April 2015, and an discretionary bonus
in amounts of HK$36,000, HK$25,000, HK$25,000 and
HK$20,000 will be granted to them respectively.
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EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and
the employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 172.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, Mr. CUl Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013
and 2014 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the annual general
meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
is an essential element in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, business partners and
the community as a whole and also the performance of the
Group. The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
reviews the corporate governance structure and practices
from time to time and makes necessary arrangements to
ensure business activities and decision making processes are
made in a proper and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014, except for the deviations as
disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Mr. YANG Dawei (resigned on 12 September 2014)

Mr. ZHU Ming (appointed on 16 April 2014 and
resigned on 24 July 2014)

Mr. YIN Mark (resigned on 12 March 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Mr. CHIANG Bun
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised ten
Directors, six of whom are Executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and four of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions against
the Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group and determining policies and practices on
the Company’s corporate governance. It also monitors the
financial performance and the internal controls of the Group's
business operations. Executive Directors are responsible for
running the Group and executing the strategies adopted
by the Board. The day-to-day running of the Company
is delegated to the management with department heads
responsible for different aspects of the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company is independent in character
and judgement. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-executive Director a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group’s business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All
regular board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board
to make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board except that Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.6.5, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills, so they can ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the
Directors with written materials.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Code provision A.6.5 by reading all materials provided by the
Company Secretary and/or attending regular training launched
by the professional bodies during the review period.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of directors entitled
to be present. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular Board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group, which did not fully comply with
the relevant Code provision. Board meetings will be held on
other occasions when Board decisions are required.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year under review, two regular Board meetings
and two general meetings (including annual general meeting
for the year 2014) were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows:
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Board Meeting General Meeting

EERTE BERXE
Executive Directors MITESE
Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and BRI A (FEFE 2/2 0/2
Managing Director) BEmamE )
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General B R S (B4 EE) 2/2 2/2
Manager)
Ms. LAU Ting Big 2z + 0/2 0/2
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia %Tﬂfﬂﬂﬁi 2/2 1/2
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam SPERLEE 2/2 2/2
Mr. SHAM Kai Man é%ﬂzﬁzﬁ‘ai 2/2 2/2
Mr. YANG Dawei (resigned on BRERER-_FE—F 0/2 0/1
12 September 2014) NA+ = HEFHE)
Mr. ZHU Ming (appointed on KPRER=-ZZFE—9F 0/0 1/1
16 April 2014 and resigned on 1A+ NHEZTR
24 July 2014) R-FE—WFL+H
Z+P9H SFE)
Mr. YIN Mark (resigned on FU (R -FE—pyF 0/0 0/0
12 March 2014) =H+ = HEHF)
Independent Non-Executive Directors HIIFHITEE
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREE 2/2 2/2
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHELE 2/2 0/2
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai PeR BA e 5 A= 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHIANG Bun BOR 5 2/2 2/2
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE ERRITHER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive were not
performed by separate individuals as stipulated in Code
provision A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company, Mr. CHAN Shing, currently assumes the role
of the chairman and also the chief executive responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies of and organising the implementation structure for
the Company and also managing the Group's overall business
operations. Given the nature of the Group’s businesses which
require considerable market expertise, the Board believed
that the vesting of the two roles provides the Group with
stable and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
planning and implementation of long term business strategies.
The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of the
structure to balance the power and authority of the Board
and the management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”) to retire by rotation at least once
every three years. However, in accordance with Bye-law 85 of
the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting of the Company
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not greater than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
save any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director. All Non-Executive Directors of the Company had
entered into service contracts with the Company for an initial
term of three years which is renewable for another three years
and the Board will ensure the retirement of each Director,
other than the one who holds the office as Chairman or
Managing Director, by rotation at least once every three years
in order to comply with Code provisions. The Chairman will
not be subject to retirement by rotation as stipulated in Code
provision A.4.2, as the Board considered that the continuity
of office of the Chairman provides the Group a strong and
consistent leadership and is of great importance to the
smooth operations of the Group. Messrs. LAU Ting, TUNG Pui
Shan, Virginia and HUANG Shenglan are subject to retirement
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr.
HUANG Shenglan and Mr. SIT Hoi Tung. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming.

The Remuneration Committee will meet to determine the
policy for the remuneration of Directors and the senior
management, and consider and review the terms of service
contracts of the Directors and the senior management.
In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
abilities, performance and contribution of the Directors to
the Group, the performance and profitability of the Group,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the prevailing
market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Three Remuneration Committee meetings were held during
the year ended 31 December 2014 to review and make
adjustments to remuneration packages of the Directors and
to consider and review the terms of service contract of the
newly appointed Director. Details of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee members are as follows:

TaARE

FHERE (&)

BE_Z-NME+_A=+—RHLFERN"
KRBT T=ZRFHEZE SR N L RAE
BERHFMFTERZERNERNEEETHNRE
BRMEK - FNEEER B ZHFREFE
L

Members’ Attendance

BRRHER#

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERTE 3/3
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FFNZE=+/E)

Mr. HUANG Shenglan Ea s 3/3

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BB LS 3/3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23 March
2012 with specific written terms of reference which deal with
its authority and duties. The Nomination Committee comprises
five members, Mr. CHAN Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Mr. CUI
Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. Mr.
CHAN Shing is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee’s duties include:

° to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

e to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

e to assess the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

e to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Two Nomination Committee meetings were held during the
year ended 31 December 2014 to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of the newly appointed
Director. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee members are as follows:

Mr. CHAN Shing BRIk %5 A
(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (1BEZ52
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EERREE
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERTE
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHELE
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BoR AR 3 5 A=

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for determining policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company and
performing the corporate governance duties as follows:

e to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Company;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides
the Board with advice and recommendations. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three members,
Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming
Fai. All of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming.
The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has
broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of
expertise in business, accounting and financial management
in the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s functions includes:

e to review and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them; and

e to review financial and internal controls, accounting
policies and practices with management, internal and
external auditors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year
under review, two of which were attended by the external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee members are as follows:
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Members’ Attendance

BRAEHERS

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLEE 3/3
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BEZEEeT/E)

Mr. HUANG Shenglan HHELE 3/3

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai PREAME ST 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had
engaged the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited and network firms, to provide the following
services and their fees charged are set out as below:

Types of Services BRI 5!

Audit of consolidated financial statements £EFE 44
of the Group for the year B f& R R st

Non-audit services FEEET AR

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and
the responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders
are set out on pages 39 and 40.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam is an Executive Director and the
Company Secretary of the Company and he had fulfilled the
requirement of Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules during
the year. He has attained not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year and his biography is set
out in the “Biographies of Directors” section of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to
convene a special general meeting. The requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office or head
office of the Company. If the Board does not within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a director at any
general meeting of the Company (the “General Meeting”),
he/she can deposit a written requisition to that effect at
the registered office or head office of the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary. In order for the Company
to inform shareholders of that proposal, the written requisition
must state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, include the person’s biographical details as
required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be
elected. The period for lodgment of such a written requisition
will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the General Meeting and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of the General Meeting. If the
requisition is received less than eleven business days prior
to the General Meeting, the Company will need to consider
the adjournment of the General Meeting in order to allow
shareholders at least ten business days’ notice of the proposal.
For any other resolution(s) to be proposed by shareholder(s)
to put forward, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders of the
Company or not less than one hundred shareholders may
submit a written requisition to move such resolution(s); and
the requisition must be signed by all requisitionist(s) and
deposited for the attention of the Company Secretary at the
registered office or head office of the Company not less than
six weeks before the General Meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week
before the General Meeting in case of any other requisition
together with sufficient money to meet all relevant expenses.
If a requisition requiring notice of a resolution is received
less than eleven business days prior to the General Meeting,
the Company will need to consider the adjournment of the
General Meeting in order to allow shareholders at least ten
business days’' notice of the proposal.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary by post to the Company of Unit 1402, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or
by email to ir@burwill.com.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year under review, there was no change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

With a view to bringing the Bye-laws in line with certain
amendments made to the Listing Rules and applicable laws of
Bermuda, incorporating certain housekeeping amendments
and updating certain provisions, the Board proposes to put
forward to the shareholders for approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting by way of special resolution to amend
the Bye-laws and to adopt a new set of bye-laws which
consolidates all of the proposed amendments referred to in
the notice of the annual general meeting dated 29 April 2015
and all previous amendments made pursuant to resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The chairman of the board should attend the annual general
meeting as stipulated in Code provision E.1.2. Mr. CHAN
Shing, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the Company’s annual general meeting held on 10 June
2014. Nevertheless, he had arranged for Mr. SIT Hoi Tung,
an Executive Director and Deputy General Manager of the
Company, to take the chair of the meeting and answer
shareholders’ questions.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 170, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Balance Sheets

BERRAR

At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—WME+_-_A=+—H

Consolidated Company
e N
2014 2013 2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hizt BB BT BT BB T
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights TE 30 R+ B 6 9,018 10,525 - =
Property, plant and equipment M EENRE 7 216,587 434,414 - -
Investment properties REME 8 - 1,007,781 = =
Intangible assets EWEE 9 = 190,798 = -
Investments in subsidiaries MBARIRE 10 - = 67,787 52,825
Due from subsidiaries lENEIDE 10 = = 476,493 940,403
Investments in associates BENTRE 11 64,254 75,194 = =
Club debentures eEES 1,473 1,509 90 90
Prepayments and other receivables TR H R AT EKR 16 39,158 39,755 = =
Deferred income tax assets BIEFGHEE 24 54,351 44,979 - -
Total non-current assets BIEREBEE 384,841 1,804,955 544,370 993,318
Current assets nBEE
Inventories rE 13 43,032 77,256 - -
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEBERIIR
through profit or loss N BEE 14 1,455 1,416 1,122 968
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 15 - 556 - -
Bills and accounts receivable fANES YA 16 1,357,569 1,130,252 - =
Deposits, prepayments and e BAFEEE
other receivables &R 16 157,662 159,109 2,029 447
Due from subsidiaries UEYNTDE 10 - - 497,302 505,959
Due from associates BENRIRK 11 33,784 33,328 - =
Due from a related company BENRIRZK 17 1,751 1,751 - -
Income tax refundable BEEEE= 87 155 = =
Cash and bank balances WE LRITES 18 128,992 164,992 650 695
1,724,332 1,568,815 501,103 508,069
Assets of disposal group classified DEAGESE
as held for sale BE 19 1,113,973 - - -
Total current assets BREEE 2,838,305 1,568,815 501,103 508,069
Total assets HEE 3,223,146 3,373,770 1,045,473 1,501,387
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Balance Sheets

BERRE

At 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—NFE+—-F=+—H

Note
it
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of ~ FAFBEREA
the Company s
Share capital B 20
Other reserves Hufk 22

(Accumulated losses)/Retained profits  (23:1E1E) /REEF 22

Consolidated

(]
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTR AR T

458,671 458,671
983,580 985,351
(202,759) 76,369

Company
28
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
#BTT BETT

458,671 458,671
993,625 975,452
(493,680) 47,160

1,239,492 1,520,391

958,616 1,481,283

Non-controlling interests FEERE R 243,292 321,816 = =
Total equity s 1,482,784 1,842,207 958,616 1,481,283
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBAERE
Borrowings BER 23 56,807 224,485 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFEHAR 24 5 227,965 = =
Provision for land restoration and T 18 B RIRER A
environmental costs B 26 4,279 4,389 - =
Total non-current liabilities BERHEE 61,091 456,839 = =
Current liabilities nHAR
Borrowings ER 23 576,885 694,508 = =
Derivative financial instruments THEERTIA 15 - 2,496 - =
Due to subsidiaries UGBS 10 - = 15,742 18,199
Due to a related company REBARFIE 17 23,315 23,315 - -
Bills and accounts payable ENEE K EMIRIE 25 429,111 177,073 = -
Other payables and accruals HEEMRER
ezt &R 212,870 174,287 71,115 1,905
Income tax payable FERFTEH 214 3,045 - -
1,242,395 1,074,724 86,857 20,104
Liabilities of disposal group classified S AFEEE
as held for sale =L 19 436,876 - - -
Total current liabilities BrEas 1,679,271 1,074,724 86,857 20,104
Total liabilities BEE 1,740,362 1,531,563 86,857 20,104
Total equity and liabilities HEZRAR 3,223,146 3,373,770 1,045,473 1,501,387
Net current assets mBEERE 1,159,034 494,091 414,246 487,965

Total assets less current liabilities #EERTHERE

1,543,875 2,299,046

958,616 1,481,283

CHAN SHING
PR 15

Chairman

*E
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Consolidated Income Statement

FeER=m®

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BETT BT
(restated)
(&=7)
Continuing operations BHEEEES
Turnover L 5 6,215,085 4,466,188
Cost of sales SHE A AR 28 (6,130,854) (4,402,174)
Gross profit ES 84,231 64,014
Other income and HeWAR(EE),/
net (losses)/gains W %5 HEE 27 (34,201) 1,561
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHR 28 (53,881) (54,291)
General and administrative expenses — R EITERER 28 (57,183) (54,392)
Share option expenses RE AR = 29 (18,173) =
Operating loss KL EE (79,207) (43,108)
Finance costs b & A A 30 (33,503) (33,264)
Impairment losses on property, I - R K
plant and equipment FERE 7 (190,614) =
Impairment losses on intangible assets & ER{E 9 (182,334) -
Share of losses of associates Frik & A FBE (1,828) (166)
Loss before income tax R FT1S A Al ES 18 (487,486) (76,538)
Income tax credit et &8 31 42,023 4,568
Loss for the year from continuing FERBBERKEEBER
operations (445,463) (71,970)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued FECKRIELCEEBRT
operations 19 95,846 91,481
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(BER)&F (349,617) 19,511
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: (B18) /BREERN
Owners of the Company NARIEREZFA A (279,128) (3,667)
Non-controlling interests AR (70,489) 23,178
(349,617) 19,511
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Consolidated Income Statement

=] | — ¥’
FeERmE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=Z—F+=-A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BETT BT T
(restated)
(E5)
(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of (B18) B EBEIN AT
the Company arises from: ERFAAKE
Continuing operations FELEET (344,813) (66,163)
Discontinued operations BRI EET 65,685 62,496
(279,128) (3,667)
(Loss)/Earnings per share from FEFATFESFTA
continuing and discontinued BERESEBREEY
operations attributable to owners RE®ILESELED
of the Company for the year s|E(ER) 27 33
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FRERN(ER),EF
From continuing operations (HK cents) R B1FE &L 5 (B) (7.52) (1.48)
From discontinued operations REERIELEET
(HK cents) (L) 1.43 1.40
(6.09) (0.08)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share FREE(EE), &7
From continuing operations (HK cents) R BB &2 %5 (B) (7.52) (1.48)
From discontinued operations REDRIFEEHK
(HK cents) GBI 1.43 1.40
(6.09) (0.08)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RERXERRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat BETT BT T
(restated)
(E5)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(E8),/ &R (349,617) 19,511
Other comprehensive income: Ee2mUA :
Items that may be reclassified Hig gt B D B2 B
subsequently to profit or loss H)HE B
Share of other comprehensive FrititE AR ETE2H
(expense)/income of associates (ZH) WA 22 (91) 799
Currency translation differences EHER =5 (27,824) 34,633
Other comprehensive (expense)/income ®EEHETE2E (L),
for the year, net of tax WA - BT IE (27,915) 35,432
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEZ2@E(ZH),/
for the year WA 428 (377,532) 54,943
Attributable to: BEERN
Owners of the Company RAREREFEA (299,072) 21,755
Non-controlling interests R R (78,460) 33,188
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FE2®E(ZH),/
for the year WA 4858 (377.532) 54,943
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEZ2E(ZH), WA L5
attributable to owners of SERANTESEEA
the Company arising from: RE
Continuing operations FEL LR (351,589) (52,260)
Discontinued operations BRI ET 52,517 74,015
(299,072) 21,755
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ReExnEH R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARFERERA AR

Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
RA Avke RERT  FERER s
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st BETT BETT BETTT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2013 “E-ZF-A-REH 418,966 966,582 66,433 290,946 1,742,977
Comprehensive income 2EHA
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(58) /B = = (3,667) 23,178 19,511
Other comprehensive income HE2EHA
Share of other comprehensive YN
income of associates ETUN 22 = 799 = = 799
Currency translation differences ERELER
- Group -£8 22 - 22,433 - 10,010 32,443
- Associates —BERA 2 - 2,190 - - 2,190
Total other comprehensive income HEe2akAEE = 25,422 = 10,010 35,432
Total comprehensive income/ 2EBA/ (Rt EE
(expense) - 25,422 (3,667) 33,188 54,943
Issue of shares Bk 20822 39,705 8,735 = = 48,440
Share issue expenses RINEATH 22 = (280) = = (280)
Release upon lapse of share options B RRAE R g & 22 - (13,553) 13,553 - -
Dividends RE = = - (3,873) (3,873)
Acquisition of additional interests WEEN B R B sME R
in a subsidiary 22&37 - (1,555) = 1,555 =
Total transactions with owners BESHAANRHER 39,705 (6,653) 13,553 (2,318) 44,287
Balance at 31 December 2013 —E-=F+-A=1-H
beg 458,671 985,351 76,369 321,816 1,842,207
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REeExREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L VNG 3PN
Retained
profits/ Non-
Share Other (Accumulated  controlling Total
capital reserves losses) interests equity
RERH/
Ex RERE  (RBHE) Rz aig
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT
Balance at 1 January 2014 “E-mE-A-BER 458,671 985,351 76,369 321,816 1,842,207
Comprehensive income 2EMA
Loss for the year FEFR - - (279128) (70,489) (349,617
Other comprehensive income Ap2ERA
Share of other comprehensive expense  FrEBE AR 2 E R H

of associates 2 - (91) - - (91)
Currency translation differences EHERZE

- Group -£8 22 - (18,041) - (7,971) (26,012)

- Associates —-BEAT 2 - (1,812) - - (1,812)
Total other comprehensive expense EvrELT LR - (19,944) = (7,97) (27,915)
Total comprehensive expense PANMER - (19,944) (279,128) (78,460) (377,532)
Employee share option scheme: [EEBR:TE :

- value of employee services -REREEER 2 - 18,173 - - 18,173
Dividends RE = = = (64) (64)
Total transactions with owners HESHAANRHER - 18,173 - (64) 18,109
Balance at 31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=1-H

e 458,671 983,580 (202,759) 243,292 1,482,784
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBE&ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat BETT BETIT
Cash flows from operating activities &BEEZHHRETE
Cash generated from operations EEEANES 35(@a) 101,662 11,145
Interest paid BEFE (43,631) (44,256)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REBRBTEM 68 -
Overseas tax paid EAEINTIE (8,347) (6,837)
Net cash generated from/(used in) SEEBEL/(FTA)
operating activities RIS 49,752 (39,948)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHHRERE
Acquisition of property, plant and BAYZE - e
equipment B (798) (2,426)
Acquisition of investment properties BAREME (529) (375)
Acquisition of intangible assets BAEFEE (1,035) (799)
Proceeds from disposal of assets HEFEEE
held for sale FIEEES - 25,000
Proceeds from disposal of club LESEES
debentures FR1SK 686 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  WEKRRE
plant and equipment PSR 295 450
Deposit received for disposal HENB AR
of subsidiaries FTigiEs 68,750 -
Funds applied to financial assets at B ANRAFEEBIER
fair value through profit or loss, net IR S EE @ F58 (41,967) (1,898)
Interest received BdFIE 2,533 1,508
Increase in due from associates Bgk & X B R GRIE N (3,582) (3,471)
Dividends received from an associate B AR E 4,592 742
Dividends received from financial assets B YR A T EFE BIEZETIIE
at fair value through profit or loss MBS EER S 122 17
Net cash generated from WERBELEN
investing activities FIRe 29,067 18,748
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeEBeNER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat BETT BETIT
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBNRERE
Issue of shares BTG = 48,440
Share issue expenses MR BT - (280)
Decrease in trust receipts bank loans SR ERITEFR D (65,591) (3,202)
Additions of other bank loans %ﬁigﬁ RITER 242,889 -
Repayment of other bank loans BEETHRTER (255,190) (88,592)
(Repayment)/Additions of other loans (B8) FmETER (20,000) 10,000
Interest element of finance lease ﬁmﬂéfﬂ 7 S8 H
rental payments (35) (72)
Capital element of finance lease rental NEEREEARE D
payments (463) (848)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEEMRITETRD 20,941 2,008
Dividends paid BRE (64) (3,873)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEFBAANFRS (77,513) (36,419)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BekBeEEMEM
cash equivalents () 88 1,306 (57,619)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January W—A—BZHEE2 K
REEEY 142,331 199,074
Effect of exchange rate changes EREH & (1,197) 876
Cash and cash equivalents at R+tZ—RA=+—Hz
31 December RekBELEEY 35(b) 142,440 142,331
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in steel trading, steel processing,
mineral resources and commercial property.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and investment properties, which are carried
at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in accordance with the applicable requirements of
the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap.32) for
this financial year and the comparative period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2014:

Amendment to HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation” on offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities.
This amendment clarifies that the right of
set-off must not be contingent on a future
event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course
of business, as well as in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The
amendment also considers settlement
mechanisms. This amendment did not
have a significant effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

2

EREARREE(E)

2.1 RREEE)

RIBEBYBRE LR RR IS
BRBEBAETERGHE - &
BEINANERANE BT HRE
TELAVE - B RERIZE HIE -
BREMERIEREAVHERER
FTEE R 2 B aR R fF (A IO P FE4 3

& o

211 B5HRZ EE R I5E

(a) AEBMRMHZHETRE
ST

AEEBR T —OF—
A—BRRZMERFERE
BIRERAA T R 2ER -

BAEGHEAEI2HH
BITARIEHMTE: 2
HKIEREBMEERS B
BEMNEE - ZIEFE
BEEHAER TS KRB
RARREMS  BEIRBAE
TAEXEBREPUR
EHREY  EHER
S ER - YA HmAE
HFHEEBBIBIT -
ZAEETINE BB B
Hl o ZIBRTEHAEEN
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T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B 35 3 R B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EREARREE(E)

2.1 RREEE)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 BEHERZ B E R 155 (E)
(continued)

New and amended standards adopted by (a) 74‘%.% 2 E] M fg
the Group (continued) TR (&)

Amendments to HKAS 36 “Impairment ARG EAFE36HE
of Assets”, on the recoverable amount RIAIBEERE]ERIE
disclosures for non-financial assets. This T RVE E IR E £ 5
amendment removed certain disclosures of WE - XTI EEEY
the recoverable amount of cash-generating B E AR F 135 M
units (“CGUs”) which had been included MEBCHE B @ ERE
in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS 13. The 36RATBRIEMNE THRE
amendment also considers settlement EABEMH]IE

mechanisms. This amendment did not
have a significant effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and only
the presentation and the disclosures of
information in the consolidated financial
statements were affected.

Amendment to HKAS 39, “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of hedge
accounting. This amendment considers
legislative changes to “over-the-counter”
derivatives and the establishment of central
counterparties. Under HKAS 39 novation
of derivatives to central counterparties
would result in discontinuance of hedge
accounting. The amendment provides
relief from discontinuing hedge accounting
when novation of a hedging instrument
meets specified criteria. The Group has
applied the amendment and there has
been no significant impact on the Group
consolidated financial statements as a
result.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21, “Levies”, sets out the
accounting for an obligation to pay a
levy if that liability is within the scope of
HKAS 37 “Provisions”. The interpretation
addresses what the obligating event is that
gives rise to the payment a levy and when
a liability should be recognised. The Group
is not currently subjected to significant
levies so the impact on the Group is not
material.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, 12 and
HKAS 27 “Consolidation for investment
entities”. These amendments mean that
many funds and similar entities will be
exempt from consolidating most of their
subsidiaries. Instead, they will measure
them at fair value through profit or loss.
The amendments give an exception to
entities that meet an “investment entity”
definition and which display particular
characteristics. Changes have also been
made HKFRS 12 to introduce disclosures
that an investment entity needs to make.

Other standards, amendments and
interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
are not material to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B 35 3 R B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2014,
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
addresses the classification, measurement
and recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The complete
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July
2014. It replaces the guidance in HKAS
39 that relates to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes
three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit or
loss. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss with
the irrecoverable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income not recycling.
There is now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS
39. For financial liabilities there were no
changes to classification and measurement
except for the recognition of changes in
own credit risk in other comprehensive
income, for liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS
9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests. It requires
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)

an economic relationship between the
hedged item and hedging instrument and
for the “hedged ratio” to be the same as
the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under
HKAS 39. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's full
impact.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part
9 "Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation as from the
Company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance. The
Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on
the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and
only the presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquire that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners).
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investments in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group'’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share
of losses of associates” in the consolidated income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
board of directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’'s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “general and administrative expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are included in

other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group’s entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEgHBERBEE)
(continued)
2.5 SMBER(E)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (d) MEFIEBEREDHE

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

— Leasehold land classified Shorter of remaining
as finance lease lease term or useful

life

— Buildings 20 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvements 2 to 10 years (over the
period of leases)

— Machinery 8 to 10 years

— Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within “other income and
net (losses)/gains” in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted
for as if they were finance leases. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the consolidated income statement as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “other income and
net (losses)/gains”.

2

EREARREE(E)

2.6

2.7

W% BBREMEE)

AR BER T R EHES
%% A AR - REDE
R -

HEEMNREESREMGR A RE
BE - AREEARHRER K
EH(MFE2.9) »

HE & E TR PSR B IRE E
B YRERABRRERIEEBAR
(B8),/ W F5 IR -

BRBEME

REMETEREHELHEHA
BT DREAERHESEHRK
BEZEIWE  MLIFHAEE
B - B EREAERENERE
REEMERRKERZYE - &
NARBEMEZESKEERR - RE
EEHERA 2T IRIRED
X -ERBIBAT fHZ2ENE
TBEMESREHEESR - REY
EUHRIRA AN (BIEEAR 5 KA
FERMEERA)GTE - RUIA
ERE  REMETIRRFED
& - B E & B HA BB (ERD
FMBEZ A ARAME - 2 FEDR
EBRMESL UM EEEZE
B SR 2 A ER RS
E(WERE) - WEEH K&
B EAEEMEE  WBNE
B OO RERIEMRBER
EFA - RFEZEHINGEE
@R AARIIMEI E B WA R (&
8)/WaFRE AN A FEKS
HERE D -

Annual Report 2014 3 65



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Mining right

Mining right acquired separately is measured on
initial recognition at cost. Mining right acquired
in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the date of acquisition. Mining right
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining right over its estimated useful life of 30
years.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Exploration
and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and activities in relation
to commercial and technical feasibility studies,
and expenditure incurred to secure further
mineralisation in existing ore bodies and to
expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure
incurred prior to acquiring legal rights to
explore an area is written off as incurred. When
it can be reasonably ascertained that a mining
property is capable of commercial production,
exploration and evaluation costs are transferred
to mining right and are amortised based on the
accounting policy as stated in “Mining right”
above. If any project is abandoned during the
evaluation stage, the total expenditure thereon
will be written off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)
(c) Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

(d) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2

EREARREE(E)

2.8

2.9

mERE(E)
) BEREBIE

BREBEEHZ ZKANER
BIRELZEME - UKAE
510 I 12 B ORI ff & AT £
RER T FHREH -

@ BB

BEESRTMHRELRER
BEMEEERZIRAGER
B - AN H IR 7 4 R
ERFHTFHANEH -

FMBERERTZRIE

AERAFERA BT EESERA
WERAMNEREETTH#E I
BEETRERA - F TN
BENRBEAEREZWEIREME
SRR E B - BETRER
5o BEBBIEEREERD
Hallk bl &5 2 Z58HER o ATkE
SEABENFER L SR AL S
BEEZESE - BAHRE &
ETVZAIER#ZRIR R E 2 &K
BoE(IReEAEMN) -  BEI
SNEREZ M IS EER SRR E
A B s R B 2 AT eI o

Annual Report 2014 3 67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B 35 3 R B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for

sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and
a sale is considered highly probable. The non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
(or disposal group), are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.
Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associates) and investment
properties, which are classified as held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographic area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the consolidated
income statement, which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal,
of the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “bills and accounts receivable”,
“deposits and other receivables”, “due
from associates”, "due from a related
company” and “cash and bank balances”
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.2Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
“other income and net (losses)/gains” in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other income and
net (losses)/gains” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income and net
(losses)/gains”. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
“other income and net (losses)/gains” when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.13Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.13Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

(b)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss) is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged declined in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss (is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss). Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the profit
or loss.

2.15Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.16 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of accounts and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

2.21Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from
the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee —
administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Bonus plans

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within 12
months after the end of each reporting period
are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.24 Share-based payments

(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

e excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee
of the entity over a specified time period);
and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or holding shares
for a specific period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (continued)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

(b) Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.25Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.25Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to customers.

(b) Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(c) Service income — service income is recognised
in the accounting periods in which the services
are rendered.

2.27 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.28 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.29 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other long-term payables. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.30Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEgHBERBEE)
(continued)

2.31Related parties 231FERS
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: T RHVERT » — i8R AEAR
SEAH :
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (a) BAANTHBEEBRET 2
person’s family and that person REKE  MZEATLT
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) BEIEHIsLRIEH AE
3
(i) has significant influence over the Group; (i) REYIAEBBEMEANT
or 23
(i) is a member of the key management iy BAEESAEE &
personnel of the Group or of a parent of RAIZEFEBEBAS
the Group;
or 54
(b) the party is an entity where any of the (b) BB ATABERNUNTEM
following conditions applies: —IHEH B :
(i) the entity and the Group are members of (i HEBEASEHRFA
the same group; SERNZKE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture (il Hp—EEBERZ—F
of the other entity (or of a parent, il AN e R
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other FlER(kER—EEBY
entity); [S3/NEC BN SN = A Sal
BAR)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures (i) ZERBEAEEHAER—
of the same third party; FE=H 2 HRAESIER
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third vy B —EERBRE=7
entity and the other entity is an associate ZHAREHERE 5
of the third entity; —BERRZA—F=71
ZHEE T
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit v) BEALTAREENE
plan for the benefit of employees of either MEAEEB#AEALT
the Group or an entity related to the ZERBSGEEENAM
Group; W 2R IEERERET
=&l
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (i) ZEBHG@PERZA
by a person identified in (a); and o P % I 3K 3 R 2
54
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) @@)PFEFEZALTHZ
influence over the entity or is a member BEREBMERNTER
of the key management personnel of the RZEB(XZERBZE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). RANZEEEEAE ©
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as
well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. Approximately 92%
(2013: 89%) of the Group’s turnover are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst approximately
8% (2013: 8%) of costs are denominated
in the units’ functional currency. The
Group manages the foreign exchange
exposure arising from its normal course
of business activities and investments in
foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flow generated from business transactions
locally. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and forward
exchange contracts are used for hedging
purposes when required.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

In view of the fact that Hong Kong dollar
("HK$") is pegged to United States dollar
("US$"), the Group’s exposure to change
in US$ exchange rate is minimal.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change
in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s (loss)/profit after income
tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity. 2% (2013: 2%) increase/
decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible
change in RMB exchange rate which have
the most impact on the Group over the
period until the end of the next reporting
period.
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=8 M B HRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

3 HMBERREHEZE)

3.1 BERBEREZ)

@) m5mEE(E)

@iy SMNERR(E)

Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
AR% KREASREGR £
EH (TBE) 1/ (RD) | (RD)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
2014
If HK$ weakens HETR
against RMB AR5 2 1,161 (1,161)
If HKS strengthens {HETR
against RMB ARiEE (2) (1,161) 1,161
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
AR  BRATSHRERT Em
EASCTRE) g/ Crd) #m, Cr )
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2013
If HK$ weakens fis 7 7T 3
against RMB AR gy 2 (3,036) (3,036)
If HK$ strengthens & 7T 3,
against RMB AR (2) 3,036 3,036
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity
investments (Note 14) as at 31 December
2013 and 2014. To manage its price
risk arising from investments in equity
securities, the Group control its portfolio
size. The Group’'s investments listed in
Hong Kong and overseas are valued at
guoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The Group was also
exposed to commodity price risk arising
from commodity swap contracts classified
as derivative financial instruments (Note
15) as at 31 December 2013.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in the
fair values of the equity investments and
derivative financial instruments with all
other variables held constant and after
any impact on income tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

HEREEEZ)
3.1 BERBEREZ)

@) m5mEE(E)

(i) Price risk (continued) (i) BIERRARKE)
Increase/
(Decrease) in Increase/
carrying amount (Decrease) in Increase/
of equity loss after (Decrease) in
investment income tax equity
BE B EIREE R REGE g
/i (D) /i (&) /i, (#d)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR
2014
5% increase in BEEE LF5%
equity price 73 (63) 63
5% decrease in BEEE THES%
equity price (73) 63 (63)
Increase/
(Decrease) in
carrying amount
of equity
investment/ Increase/
derivative (Decrease) in Increase/
financial profit after (Decrease) in
instruments income tax equity
BAE
eI A
IREE BrATEHIERBA Em
i,/ () i,/ CRd) i,/ Cid)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT AETT
2013
5% increase in WRAERE EF5%
equity price 71 62 62
5% decrease in PRAERE T PS5 %
equity price (71) (62) (62)
5% increase in PEmER 5%
commodity price 1,767 1,475 1,475
5% decrease in P B TFE5%
commodity price (1,767) (1,475) (1,475)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. During 2013 and 2014,
the Group’s borrowings at variable rate
were denominated in US$, RMB and HKS$.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit
after income tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s
equity.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

3 HMBERREHEZE)

3.1 BERBEREZ)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

@) m5mEE(E)

(i) HERERDFENER

(continued) [R\B (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
FIREEN BRRATREGR =
| (D) | (D) |/ (D)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BETT
2014
us$ ES A 100 1,460 (1,460)
RMB ARH 100 642 (642)
HK$ BT 100 1,082 (1,082)
us$ E o (100) (1,460) 1,460
RMB AR® (100) (642) 642
HK$ BT (100) (1,082) 1,082
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
FIREE BRATSHEER R
#an,/ CRd) #an,/ CRd) g, O )
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2013
us$ ETT 100 (2,183) (2,183)
RMB AR 100 (1,125) (1,125)
HK$ BIT 100 (1,212) (1,212)
us$ ETT (100) 2,183 2,183
RMB AR (100) 1,125 1,125
HK$ BT (100) 1,212 1,212
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults.
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to

bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, due from associates, due from
a related company and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of guarantees, further details of
which are disclosed in Note 36(c) and Note
39(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

MERBRER(Z)

3.1 MBRBRERZ)

) RBEZERE)

REBEE O MARRRE 2K
AE - AKBNMARR®RSE
MRV BREZFHOT

Carrying Total More than
amount as per  contractual ~ On demand 1 year
consolidated undiscounted or within  but less than
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years
Biu#
BiReRE mEBRZ BERH —EHE
RRARCIEEE HeRBEE —FARE EREER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BRI ERTT BT
2014
Group £
Borrowings g% 633,692 635,040 578,233 56,807
Due to a related company REEAFRE 23,315 23,315 23,315 -
Bills and accounts payable FEftZiE R FEf1iIR1E 429,111 429,111 429,111 -
Other payables and HEEMHIREREH
accruals BH 192,725 192,725 192,725 -
Guarantee for loan facilities BB EA T EHAE
granted to an associate EHZER - 489,285 489,285 -
Guarantee given to banks AEEMEBEEER
for mortgage facilities BERmRETHE
granted to the buyers of ~ HZiEE
the Group’s properties - 95 95 =
1,278,843 1,769,571 1,712,764 56,807
Company 27
Due to subsidiaries BB ARRE 15,742 15,742 15,742 -
Other payables and HEBHIREREH
accruals BH 71,115 71,115 71,115 -
86,857 86,857 86,857 -
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3

MBERRER(EZ)

3.1 MBRBRERZ)

() nEEzmEEE)

Carrying Total More than
amount as per  contractual  On demand 1 year
consolidated  undiscounted or within  but less than QOver
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years 5 years
REREE AV
BfERz  MAHEZ JEERsk —FLE
REE RenE€E —SREE ERLER TFEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BT BT BETT
2013
Group ]
Borrowings B 918,993 925,269 697,780 156,976 70,513
Derivative financial (TEERIA
instruments 2,49 2,496 2,49 - -
Due to a related company  REEAFFHIE 23,315 23,315 23,315 — -
Bills and accounts payable  FE{TZE1E [ fE [ 1RIE 177,073 177,073 177,073 - -
Other payables and HEEERRER
accruals S EH 141,764 141,764 141,764 = =
Guarantee for loan BRENRERBEE
facilities granted to it &R
an associate - 11,160 11,160 - -
Guarantees given to banks ~ AEEYEEEZ
for mortgage facilities EEENMR
granted to the buyers of I ZER
the Group's properties - 97 97 - -
1,263,641 1,281,174 1,053,685 156,976 70,513
Company NG
Due to subsidiaries RWBRRTE 18,199 18,199 18,199 - -
Other payables and HEEERRER
accruals EtER 1,905 1,905 1,905 - -
20,104 20,104 20,104 - -
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet and borrowings
included in disposal group classified as held for sale)
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (including share
capital, reserves, (accumulated losses)/retained
profits and non-controlling interests as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet) and other loans
from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
(including those transferred to disposal group
classified as held for sale).

3
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

3 HMBERREHEZE)

3.2

During 2014, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2013, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2013 and

2014 were as follows:

Re®wR(E)

RZZE—NF  AEBZREA
W EBELHERANL RER
90% BT —=FHEMR - ©
ZE—=FR-FT—HWE+HA
=T HZEBEE AR X
o

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Total borrowings BER 816,642 918,993
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY

(Note 35(b)) (Ff5E35(b)) (142,440) (142,331)

Net debt E5 E5E 674,202 776,662

Total equity 48R 1,482,784 1,842,207

Adjusted capital FCEREL S IN 1,542,541 1,902,143

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio (EFSE R BEAR AN &R 44% 41%

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMER

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
at 31 December 2014. See Note 8 for disclosures of
the investment properties that are measured at fair
value.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BEERBEEHEE)

3.3 DFEMHEE)

FR2JIAREN -F—ME+=
A=+—BUAFEFENEER
B AKESRAENEARE
AT EHE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—k £ BE® o1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT #B%Trt BTt #B%TrT
Assets gE
Financial assets at BRATFEZEBRS
fair value through SRR RIS B E
profit or loss
- Listed equity securities - EHBEFESH 1,455 = = 1,455
The following table presents the Group's assets that TREVWAEER=-ZE—=F1+=
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2013. A=+—HURAFEFENEE °
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—R B E= FEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT ABETT ABETT
Assets BE
Financial assets BATEEBEZR
at fair value through IR I IS E E
profit or loss
— Listed equity securities — ETRARES 1,416 = = 1,416
— Commodity swap contracts — g mEHE4 - 556 - 556
1,416 556 - 1,972
Liabilities BB
Financial liabilities BEAFEBEREBZRS
at fair value through IRAEB S AR
profit or loss
— Commodity swap contracts —EmEHEL - 2,496 = 2,496
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

e Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between the fair value hierarchy classifications
during the year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(a) Estimated impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether the intangible
assets are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the individual
asset or respective CGUs in which these assets
belong, which is the higher of the value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Where
the actual future cash flows or fair value less
cost of disposal are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, impairment
charges of approximately HK$162,945,000 and
HK$19,389,000 were made on the Group's
mining right and exploration and evaluation
assets arising from the mineral resources
operation respectively. Please refer to Note 9
for more details.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights have been determined
based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or value in use calculations, taking into
account latest market information and past
experience. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgements and estimates.
An impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the recoverable amount.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgement and assumptions have
been disclosed in Note 8.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions
in the periods in which such determination are
made.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

(d) Income taxes and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of loss from continuing
operations before income tax for the year. The
information provided to the directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is organised into four major operating
units: (i) steel trading; (ii) steel processing; (iii) mineral
resources; (iv) commercial property; and (v) other
segment comprises, principally, management services
business. The commercial property and other segment
are classified as discontinued operations.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Turnover recognised during the year is as follows: NEEWER T EEZBNT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations RFHEEERY
Sale of goods HE 6,215,085 4,466,188
Discontinued operations CRILEETES
Rental income HEUWA 59,768 59,987
Service income AR AU A 22,684 22,000
82,452 81,987
6,297,537 4,548,175
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEEGE)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December
2014 are as follows:

BE-T-mE+-A=+—HILFE
NA I ¢

Continuing operations

BREBER
Steel Steel Mineral
trading processing  resources Unallocated Group
WERS MENI 2 HERR ®AE &0
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#ETT E%TT BBt B%TR  E%Tn
Total segment sales DEHE LR 6,005,309 209,776 = - 6,215,085
Inter-segment sales DEEEE - - - - -
Sales to external customers HETINDEF 6,005,309 209,776 - - 6,215,085
Operating profit/(loss) before  FR&f FillJa B AL &
below items &R,/ (&#8) 26,402 (2,911) (16,983) (27,554) (21,046)
Fair value gains/(losses) on BATEEBERVIED
financial assets at fair value BBEEZNTE
through profit or loss ezt / (B518) 2,846 212 = (21) 3,037
Fair value losses on derivative ~ #T4 4@ T A
financial instruments ATESE = = = (43,025) (43,025)
Share option expenses BRES = = = (18,173)  (18,173)
Operating profit/(loss) BERA/(BR) 29,248 (2,699)  (16,983)  (88,773)  (79,207)
Finance costs BEKA (27,162) (865) (4,969) (507) (33,503)
Impairment losses on property, #9% « &Kk
plant and equipment RtERE - - (190,614) - (190,614)
Impairment losses on B EE
intangible assets HE - - (182,334) = (182,334)
Share of losses of associates Pt 4 A 718 - - = (1,828) (1,828)
Segment results NEEE 2,086 (3,564)  (394,900) (91,108)  (487,486)
Income tax credit FISHER 42,023
Loss for the year from FERERELE
continuing operations 2RER (445,463)
Profit for the year from FEREBRLEE
discontinued operations EJ: 925 95,846
Loss for the year FEBR (349,617)

Annual Report 2014 3% 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B 35 3 R B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEEGE)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December
2013 are as follows:

BE_Z—=F+-A=+—HLEFE
RO EREELZWT

Continuing operations

RESEE%
Steel Steel Mineral
trading  processing resources  Unallocated Group
HEZESH WEML REAR A 5B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
wETT AT A¥TT BETr A%
Total segment sales DEHEBE 4,206,471 259,717 = - 4,466,188
Inter-segment sales D EPFEHE - - - - -
Sales to external customers HEFHNSBEF 4,206,471 259,717 - - 4,466,188
Operating profit/(loss) before K& Tl E &
below items LERF,/ (ER) 9,355 (3,470) (14,720) (29,322) (38,157)
Expenses on proposed o= fks
disposal of subsidiaries HBARILH - - (1,829) - (1,829)
Fair value gains on financial RO TEERBRTIRE
assets at fair value through NHEEL
profit or loss AFERE 4,082 112 - 715 4,909
Fair value losses on derivative T4 4mTI A
financial instruments ATEERE = = = (8,031) (8,031)
Operating profit/(loss) geEN/ (BR) 13,437 (3,358)  (16,549) (36,6398 (43,108)
Finance costs REKAR (22,475) (1,215) (9,055) (519)  (33,264)
Share of losses of associates  FifEE & 1\ Al 518 = = = (166) (166)
Segment results DEEE (9,038) (4,573) (25,604) (37,323) (76,538)
Income tax credit MEHER 4,568
Loss for the year from EEREFHELE
continuing operations ERER (71,970)
Profit for the year from FEREDRIEE
discontinued operations E Y] 91,481
Profit for the year FERT 19,511

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate
expenses including directors’ salaries, share of losses
of associates, fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments and share option expenses.

Other segment information

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2014 and depreciation, amortisation and additions to
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2014

are as follows:

Continuing operations

tements

SWMEHE)

DEPEE AR D AR B, (&
BIMATBERIEZEERT &
TEFBREEHS EBERRER
TEEMTAATEBRERERES
4o

HESBEH

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—HBHHHE
ENBEBEBARBEE-_ZT—NE+_—A
=+—BIEFENTTE - B RIEAE
MEVEEMNT

REBERS
Steel Steel Mineral Discontinued
trading  processing resources  Unallocated Sub-total  operations Group
BRI
RER5 AEmMI REZR 2R it BERE 0

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT  ERTT  BRTR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT  ERTT  BRTR  ERTR

Assets BE 1,500,781 130,927 223,842 253,623 2,109,173 1,113,973 3,223,146
Liabilities a8 886,370 48,041 167,703 201,372 1,303,486 436,876 1,740,362
Depreciation g 1,577 2,656 1,029 1,576 6,838 1,514 8,352
Amortisation B - 156 7.260 - 7,416 Iy 7,457
Additions to ERERY

non-current assets BE 4 51 1,035 - 1,090 1,272 2,362
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2013 and depreciation, amortisation and additions to
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2013
are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEWMEHE)
HESBERE)

R-BE—=F+"A=+—BHH P&
ENBEARBEE_Z—=+_A
=+ HIEFENFE - BERIZRIE
MEVEEWMT

Discontinued operations

BRIEEEES
Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial

trading  processing resources property Others  Unallocated Group

HEES HEMT BERER BERME v AOR £E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BB BB BB BB BETTL BB

Assets BE 1,265,771 145,963 636,059 1,076,995 5,993 242,989 3,373,770

Liabilities BE 576,538 105,332 231,710 225,035 23,595 369,353 1,531,563

Depreciation e 1,850 3,043 997 636 1,045 1,567 9,138

Amortisation B = 156 6,993 4 = = 7,190
Additions to ERERE

non-current assets BE 242 9 824 11,014 2,030 380 14,199

Segment assets exclude club debentures, derivative
financial instruments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, deferred income tax assets,
investments in associates, income tax refundable and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
income tax payable, derivative financial instruments,
corporate borrowings and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s business segments operate in four main
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a

worldwide basis.

SWMEHE)
it = 35 ¥

REEHLBEABARRTREE - =
SN EREES -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
(restated)
(&E5))
Continuing operations FEAE AT
Turnover (by location of customers) SR (IRAERE D E
— Asia (other than Mainland China and — M (B FEH
Hong Kong) REE) 2,515,092 1,844,053
- Hong Kong — BB 1,247,094 404,049
— Europe — &M 953,794 803,512
— Mainland China — 732,021 1,154,698
— Others —H7 767,084 259,876
6,215,085 4,466,188
Discontinued operations BARIFAEEETE
Turnover (by location of customers) SEBEIZERMEDE)
— Mainland China — e 82,452 81,987
6,297,537 4,548,175
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
Non-current assets EREEE
— Mainland China — e 199,841 1,614,786
- Hong Kong — B 64,709 68,161
— Europe — BOM 210 319
— Others —He 3 7
264,763 1,683,273

The non-current assets information above is based on the
location of assets and excludes club debentures, deferred
income tax assets and investments in associates.

A EFERBDEEREEMELES D -
BETERefES BETMEREER

BEATRE -
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had
sales of approximately HK$823,397,000 to a single
significant customer of the steel trading segment,
representing approximately 13% of the sales to external
customers (2013: Nil).

6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use

rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

SWMEHE)

HE-_ZT—NE&E+-_A=+—BIF
B AEEMEZE SIS HEEL B
823,397,000t F—UEE—EREF -
HAREEZINFHENI3%(ZE—=
FoAE) o

HRI R iR
AEBEEHEE LR RN ER

RRENSBRER - BEREFEAN
T -

Group
£EH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFIT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EEEUINEE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TERATFHNEE 9,018 10,525

Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$4,602,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: HK$5,818,000) were pledged
to secure against certain of the Group's bank borrowings
(see Note 23).

Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights
during the year is as follows:

R-_E—ME+_A=+—H ™
Er kT FEREAREELS
4,602,000 (ZZE — =4 : B
5,818,0007T) B A HEEIRITENRIE
(R ME23) -

ME iR T EAERFERNEBIN
T

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETRT BT T

At 1 January Hn—HA—H 10,525 10,722

Currency translation differences BT N =R (141) 175
Amortisation of prepaid operating A ERE IR

lease payments 5 (372) (372)

Transferred to disposal group classified as HERSGE
held for sale 55 (994) =
At 31 December nt+—-_A=+—H 9,018 10,525
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7

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 M- BBREME
Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Furniture
long-term improve- and Motor  Construction
finance lease Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
REBRE g
BERETH Y BTRE BE  GARGE B ERIE %
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
A%t EMfr  AETn A¥Tr RbTn A%t BEfn BT
Year ended HE-Z-ZF12A
31 December 2013 =t-RALEE
Opening net book amount BNREFE 58,577 33,239 1,655 9,49 3,300 4,152 320,971 431390
Currency translation differences ~ EMEH£8E - 351 25 158 66 61 9,516 10,177
Additions pN - - 2,045 - 381 - - 2,426
Disposals & - - (24) - (97) (320) = (441)
Depreciation charge g (1.283) (2,240 (970) (2,012) (1,530) (1,141) = (9,138)
Closing net book amount BREEEE 57,334 31,348 2,731 7,642 2,120 2,152 330,487 434,414
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=F
tZA=1-A
Cost A 82,582 67,852 13,150 69,716 12,470 10,573 330,487 586,830
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE (25,248) (36,504) (10,419) (62,074) (10,350) (7.821) - (152,416)
Net book amount REFE 57,334 31,348 2,731 7,642 2,120 2,152 330,487 434,414
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 PE BIERRMKE)
Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Furniture
long-term improve- and Motor  Construction
finance lease  Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
REERH #5
HRERIH BF  HBFRE f% RAREHE ER  ERIE 1]
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
EhTn BRTT  ERTT  ERTn BRTR  ERTn RRTR ERTR
Year ended HEZS-TET2A
31 December 2014 =T-HIEEE
Opening net book amount BREHE 57,334 31,348 2731 7,682 2,120 2750 330487 434414
Currency translation differences ~ SBEH£8E - (284) (33) (116) (55) (46) (5,733) (6,267)
Additions ER - - - - 349 449 - 798
Disposals & - (74) - - - (104) - (178)
Impairment charge e - - - - - - (190,614)  (190,614)
Depreciation charge TE (1,243) (2,245) (1.212) (1,677) (979) (936) = (8,352)
Transferred to disposal group ~~ BEZEE
classified as held for sale £H - (10,868) (942) - (459) (945) = (13,214)
Closing net book amount BRIEEEE 56,091 17,871 484 5,849 976 1170 134,140 216,587
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=f
=t+-A
Cost A 82,582 50,681 6,036 64,884 1,8% 8,091 322,518 542,688
Accumulated depreciation ESpiE
and impairment REE (26,491)  (32.804) (5552)  (59,035) (6,920) (6,921)  (188,378)  (326,101)
Net book amount IRE%E 56,01 17,871 484 5,849 976 1170 134140 216,587

Property, plant and equipment transferred to the
disposal group classified as held for sale amounts to
HK$13,214,000 (2013: Nil). Further details regarding the
disposal group classified as held for sale are set out in
Note 19.

Depreciation expense of continuing operations of
approximately HK$2,691,000 (2013: HK$3,074,000)
has been charged in cost of sales, HK$1,574,000 (2013:
HK$1,850,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
HK$2,573,000 (2013: HK$2,533,000) in general and
administrative expenses.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 December 2014, leasehold land in Hong Kong
under long-term finance lease and buildings with
carrying amount of approximately HK$56,091,000
(2013: HK$57,334,000) and HK$15,190,000 (2013:
HK$28,467,000), respectively, were pledged to secure
against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (see Note
23).

Motor vehicles include the following amounts where the
Group is a lessee under finance leases:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Wk BBREME(E)

R-ZE—ME+=-_A=+—8  R&E
BAREARMEHEL W NEFREED
Bl 4775 # 56,091,000 ( ZE — =4 :
75 57,334,0007T) K& % 15,190,000
TT(ZZE— =% : #%28,467,0007C)
BASBHEBRTERERB(RME
23) °

AEBEABEEEAETNEHEE
TSR

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Cost — capitalised finance leases RAR—EBERERERE 2,047 2,047
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (1,879) (1,368)
Net book amount IR E 168 679

The Group leases a motor vehicle under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease term is 5 years, and
ownership of the assets lie within the Group.

Impairment test of construction in progress

During the year ended 31 December 2014, due to the
market price of iron concentrates in Mainland China
decreased to a level lower than the projected production
cost of the mineral resources operation, impairment
charge was made for construction in progress of
approximately HK$190,614,000. The recoverable amount
of construction in progress is determined based on
the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use calculation. As at 31 December 2014, the
recoverable amount of construction in progress was
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal,
management has taken reference to the valuation reports
conducted by an independent valuer. The construction
in progress measured at fair value was classified as level
3. The market value of construction in progress has been
derived using cost approach (depreciation replacement
cost) and this considers the cost to reproduce or replace
in new condition the assets appraised in accordance with
current market prices for similar assets, with allowance
for accrued depreciation. The key assumptions are that
the cost of reproduction/replacement of the subject
assets, accrued depreciation and the assets will continue
to be used in its present existing state with the benefit of
continuity of the tenure of land and building during the
foreseeable future.

AEBERBETAHMBERERESOR
BHEER BHARRFEREEMBE
DAREEME -

EEIREERR

HE-_Z-—NE+-_A=1+—HItEE
W B BRSNS E R E R TEE
BREBNIBTEERAE - FEIRED
1R (B & A #4758 190,614,0007T ° £
FEIREMIKESEZRBAFERLE
RARFEREEMEFRSMETE - 1
—E-NFE+A=+—H BEEZ
B EMT RS  EREIEATK
] & %8 LAR R A S (ER & A AN i 2
E o NATEAENERIEEER
FEZER - EEIBHOMEBEERAK
KEFEETERAR)GTENE EEF
BRNENGEHTIERENREEEN
MHSERINBRETITERN TN EREENK
Ko TBRJ[EENER EELME
ERKRAR, Batin&E RS E R L
BT FHAEEE TARRER -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 HWEBE
Group
£EH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At fair value BoFEE
Opening balance at 1 January N—A—BEF¥4H 1,007,781 883,520
Additions IR 529 10,974
Fair value gains (included in “profit for AN ERE(BIEE
the year from discontinued operations”) [REEBERIEEE
EBanl) 82,908 84,632
Currency translation differences EHEN =58 (26,230) 28,655
Transferred to disposal group classified as EEFGE
held for sale (Note 19) S8/ (HE19) (1,064,988) -
Closing balance at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—HB%FK
raER - 1,007,781
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment RIRBEMERBERTERNEHE
properties
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Rental income HeWKA 59,768 59,987
Direct operating expenses from property EXHSWANYEZ
that generated rental income HEESEER (2,254) (5,815)
57,514 54,172
The Group's interests in investment properties at their AEBAEREMENERIREIREFE
net book amounts are analysed as follows: DT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Mainland China AR
— held on leases of between —BEt+tE=R+588
10 and 50 years HE - 1,007,781
At 31 December 2013, the investment properties N-ZE—=F+-A=+—8 " &&
of approximately HK$985,086,000 were pledged as W% #4978 % 985,086,000 T 2 FIK I -
collateral for the Group's banking facilities (see Note 23). EAAREE ZIIRTRERER (R E
23) e
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Vigers Appraisal
and Consulting Limited, to determine the fair value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2013
and 2014. The investment properties of the Group
were transferred to disposal group classified as held
for sale during the year. The revaluation gains or losses
is included in “profit for the year from discontinued
operations” in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014. The following
table analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value, by valuation method.

Fair value hierarchy

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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wREME(E)

REBMIGEYERTEHMBETEE
FHHER AR ARSI TEHE - A
RER-_ZT—=FR-_FT—NF+=_A
= t+t—HHNATE AEBIIREME
PEEREEGFESER - EfEUBER
T ER T NFEEGRAEER
[FEERILEEEBRNFER - T
RIZEEFTEDMARFEEAZEZRE
L/ EE

LFEFR

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2014 using
R-ZE—NE+-RA=+—HAFE

RHERFER
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
REREE HEWRER AAHE
EETS LR BRHEX BRHEX
W= WAE BAE
(B—#®) (B=#R) (B=#])
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETRT B¥ETT B¥ETT
Description ¥l sl
Recurring fair value measurements KEEEANFES=
Investment properties transferred to ~ EEZEFE
disposal group classified as held for CE v
sale: BREME
— Shopping malls — Mainland China — % —FE - - 1,064,988
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e
FEMBEERERME
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8 BREMEE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DTFESRE)

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2013 using
R-F—=F+-A=+—BA¥E

SHERFTRA
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

FBEEE HEA#ER AT ERER
MBS LR EBHNEARX ESHNEK

B BAE BAE
(F—/) (B (E=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETIT BETIT

Description ¥ st

Recurring fair value measurements LEMENEEGTE

Investment properties: WEME:

— Shopping malls — Mainland China — 35— E - - 1,007,781
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and EESHLBERBEANSENE A RE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date HAFESE  NEBOBEENE B
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the RZ P o

transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during F— o FoMREZFBR ZERAK
the year. FEMEAD -
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)

wREME(E)

LAFEABRRAFTHERESHEXE
AE(E=]H)

31 December

2014
Shopping
malls
in Mainland
China
R-ZE—MF
+=-RA=+—8H
IR h B B 45
HK$'000
BT
Opening balance FHEEH 1,007,781
Additions 1857 529
Net gains from fair value adjustment EAFEARW R FEE 82,908
Currency translation differences BEEN =5 (26,230)
Transferred to disposal group classified as HEE S HATESRE
held for sale (Note 19) (HteE19) (1,064,988)
Closing balance FARGEEH -
Total gains for the year included in profit for EFEERIEEEEBRENA
the year from discontinued operations BB Z 82,908
Change in unrealised gains for the year EFEEERIEREEBRIA
included in profit for the year from RNERKREIR W F
discontinued operations 82,908
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3) (continued)

wREME(E)

LAFEHERAFTERESHEXE
AE(B=R) (&)

31 December

2013
Shopping malls
in Mainland
China
RZZT—=%F
+=—RA=+—H
iz 7 R B B 7 3%
HK$'000
BT T
Opening balance F 883,520
Additions jrehviN 10,974
Net gains from fair value adjustment B QT ERARR R FE 84,632
Currency translation differences EWIEH =5 28,655
Closing balance FREER 1,007,781
Total gains for the year included in profit or loss  fEEZARERTIFER
for assets held at the end of the year BEF AR 84,632
Change in unrealised gains for the year ERHANRERAFEN
included in profit or loss for assets held at BERFARERZ
the end of the year g 5 5 84,632
Valuation process of the Group XEEGEBE

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2013 and 2014 by independent professionally
qualified valuers who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent experience in
the locations and segments of the investment properties
valued. For all investment properties, their current use

equates to the highest and best use.

The management will review the valuation performed by

the independent valuers, including:

e verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation

report;

e assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

e  holds discussions with the independent valuer.
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques

For shopping malls in Mainland China, the valuation was
determined using the income capitalisation approach
(term and reversionary method) which was based on
capitalization of the net rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

income potential of the properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques

during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Fair value at
31 December  Valuation Unobservable
Description 2014* technique inputs
RZZ—N%F
+-HA=+—-H @R
st BAFE* {5 E R WAE
(HK$'000)
(B%Tm)
Shopping malls 1,064,988 Income Term yield
- Mainland capitalisation  FRHUE R
China approach
&5 —HE (term and
reversionary
method)
WAE R E Reversionary
(BEFEHR yield
B8%) Bk x
Market rent
m5HE
* Investment properties as at 31 December 2014 included in disposal

group classified as held for sale.

wREME(E)

{5 {5 5 1l

R AR B S B E TR BRAE R
E(BEFHRRERE) BERERE
HARFREBABER - AT AWE

BENERRE -

AEREERMLELS -

FRAFEMAERAFTHERESHE
KBAEHRE(EZR)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

AARRBAE
g E

6.0% -7.5%

6.5% -8.0%

RMBO0.19 per square
meter per day to
RMB13.57 per
square meter
per day

BRAAR%0.19T/
FhHREGRAARE
13577/ F Ak

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
AR
WAERLEE
BB %

The higher the term
yield, the lower
the fair value.

HEaEEs
NFEBE -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the fair
value.

ERUAEEE

AYEME -

The higher the market
rent, the higher
the fair value.

BRI
APELE -

Y EEAFET A= —HERESER
FELEAREYE

Annual Report 2014 &3 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B 35 3 R B

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

Fair value at
31 December  Valuation
Description 2013 technique
R=8—-=
+=A=+—-H
fiik HAFE EERE
(HK$"000)
(B%Tm)
Shopping malls 1,007,781 Income
- Mainland capitalisation
China approach (term
1% — P E and reversionary
method)
WANERE
(EEFHK
B8%)

118 Burwill Hoidings Limited B & 82 & IR 24 &

Unobservable

inputs

AR
WAl

Term yield
HEE=

Reversionary
yield
CE et

m

Market rent
mizis

wREME(E)

FRAFEAERAFTHERESHE
KEAENRHE(BZR) (2

Range of
unobservable
inputs

AUBREAED
#E

6.0% -7.5%

6.5% - 8.0%

RMBO.05 per square
meter per day to
RMB10.5 per square
meter per day

FHARK0.057,/
FhREGRAARE
10570/ FHAK

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FARR
WAEHELATEH
B %

The higher the term
yield, the lower
the fair value.

e EEYR
N EBIE

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the fair
value.

BREENE -
AFEBLE -

The higher the market
rent, the higher
the fair value.

[k
AEERS -
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 |EEEE
Group
£8
Exploration Domain names,
and trademark
Mining evaluation  and computer
right assets software Total
BER He mER
B FhEE BlEEG #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BRI BB BETT
At 1 January 2013 WZE-=%—-f—H
Cost A 201,199 17,980 193 219,372
Accumulated amortisation and LEEERAE
impairment (28,146) - (193) (28,339)
Net book amount REFE 173,053 17,980 - 191,033
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-_E-=Ff1+-R=1-H
tFE
Opening net book amount HIRERHE 173,053 17,980 - 191,033
Currency translation differences EHERZE 5,231 553 = 5,784
Additions IR 744 55 - 799
Amortisation charge B (6,818) = = (6,818)
Closing net book amount HRIEETE 172,210 18,588 - 190,798
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=F+-fA=1-H
Cost A 208,134 18,588 193 226,915
Accumulated amortisation and LEBHERAE
impairment (35,924) - (193) (36,117)
Net book amount REFE 172,210 18,588 = 190,798
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_E-WE+-A=1—8
&R
Opening net book amount R FE 172,210 18,588 = 190,798
Currency translation differences EMELER (2,180) (234) S (2,414)
Additions R - 1,035 - 1,035
Impairment charge HE (162,945) (19,389) = (182,334)
Amortisation charge B (7,085) - - (7,085)
Closing net book amount BRI HE = - - -
At 31 December 2014 R-E-WE+=A=+—H
Cost BN 202,930 19,146 193 222,269
Accumulated amortisation and KEEHERAE
impairment (202,930) (19,146) (193) (222,269)
Net book amount IR HE - - - -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of the mining right of approximately
HK$7,085,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: HK$6,818,000) is included in general and
administrative expenses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of mining right over its estimated
useful life of 30 years. The licence period of the mining
right held by the Group is 2 years and 2 months (2013:
2 years and 2 months). In the opinion of the directors,
the Group will be able to renew the mining right with
relevant government authorities continuously at minimal
charges.

Impairment test of mining right and exploration and
evaluation assets

During the year ended 31 December 2014, as a result
of the market price of iron concentrates in Mainland
China decreased to a level lower than the projected
production cost by the mineral resources operation. In
the opinion of the directors, impairment losses on mining
right and exploration and evaluation assets amounting
to approximately HK$162,945,000 and HK$19,389,000
related to CGU of the mineral resources operation are
identified and charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2014, respectively.

For the purpose of impairment reviews, mining right
and exploration and evaluation assets set out above
is allocated to the CGU related to mineral resources
operation.

At 31 December 2014, the recoverable amount of the
CGU is determined based on value in use calculation. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.
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FEMBERRME

ERRE(Z)

BE-_Z-—HN&+-A=+—HLF
& RREEREEE 4758 7,085,0007T (=
T— =4 : B%6,818,0007T) B BIERN
—RITIRER o

RIBEREH R A EAORRE AT A fE
RER=tERRADEHE - AEHE
BRECRBREERBAMENREA
—T=F - MEXREA) - EFR
RARERENAKEER —BEEHBA
B2 SRIRHE -

BRRERBDERFERERERRD

HE-_ZT—N&E+-_A=+—8 " &
RAEBREENTEEREREEER
XEBHNBHEERE  EZRAEEH
HEEABURBRELEREEPNEE
BEEMERFHEERED BN BB
162,945,000 7T % 7 #19,389,0007T -
WRZE—MF+—A=+—HLEFE
BEPHER -

AT RERA - DA LR N2 BRI M)
KEHEEES N R ARBEERE
BZBREELEM -

R=ZFE—WNF+=-A=+—H0 BeE
SBN A B WEE IR EFERER
BT sfEFRAEEZEEREAHA
EEREERAEZNNER EEER
TEHEE) - BEERKRMEE RIS
CRZBMEMREEABEMZEER
S FATLL RIGFTITIR R - MR RIRE
WIEHEET - SEEREBEKAEZE)
RBEIEF MBS AR EemE

TE °
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10

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test of mining right and exploration and
evaluation assets (continued)

The Group prepared cash flows forecast derived from the
most recent financial forecast approved by management
for the next five years. The CGU cashflow beyond the
3-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3%. The financial budget and growth rate are
estimated with reference to the development curve of
the industry in the PRC region. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows for CGU is 12.9%.

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries

(a)

10

EBERE(F)

RRERMERFARIERERAE)

AEERBEEEREIERRAFT 2 &IT
HYBBEARERSRERE - G@%
TRy ReEEBENAE S RER
DRRAREERERINETHE -
BEERERETE2ERFME 21T
HE2ERBAEE c BFREARSESE
BU2HEESREWNALER12.9% °

B ATFRERER

(a) MBAFRR

Company
|

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETARMD - KA 42,415 42,415
Capital contributions relating to H AR 19 2 A5 2 R

share-based payment BRANITE 25,372 10,410

67,787 52,825

Investments in Group undertakings are recorded
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
paid.

AEENHBREAZFREFHAT
e RRANIRE -
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 10 MEATREIRER(Z)

(continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBATIRE(EZ)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at R-ZE—NFEF+_-_A=+—H8z=
31 December 2014: ZMBARMNT
Percentage of
Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital to the Group  Principal activities
FRERFL
ML EE BBTR L YRR L
& B R LR BRERF BRFESL FERBHE
Directly held:
BERE
Burwill and Company Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$50,000,000 and 100%  Investment holding
company £50,000 RERR
ERARAMLH 750,000,007 &
50,000
Burwill HK Portfolio Limited The British Virgin Islands Us$2 100%  Investment holding
limited liability company 27t RAER
ABRABREREARA
Burwill China Portfolio Limited The British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
limited liability company 157t RERR
ERRABREREARA
Smart Task Limited The British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
limited liability company 137t REER
AERABEEREMARA
Indirectly held:
RIERA -
Burwill (China) Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$200 100%  Investment holding
ER(TE)ARAT company 2007 REER
BBERERART
Burwill Commercial Holdings Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$1 100%  Investment holding
EREEHEERLA company BEIT REER
EABRELAH
Burwill Minerals Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$1 100%  Investment holding
ERRERRAR company BRI REER
ERRRAEAHA
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10

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

4

Indirectly held: (continued)
RERE : (&)

Burwill Resources Limited

BRI ERR AR

Burwill Resources Europe, S.A.

Burwill Steel Company Limited

Burwill Steel Pipes Limited

ERAEARAA

Burwill Times Industrial Limited

EARAEXARAT

Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited
(Note (i))
BHAR(LBARRAMZ))

REMAEEHERAT
(Note ()(Hrit()

Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory
Limited (Note (i)

RERENEHARAA
(Hrat())

Place of
incorporation/
operations and
kind of legal entity

s EE
WRR AT

Hong Kong limited liability
company

ERAREMALH

Spain limited liability company

B FAREMALT

The British Virgin Islands
limited liability company
ABRUHBAREALT

Hong Kong limited liability
company

ERAREMLH

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEERALAT
Mainland China
HE

Mainland China
i

Mainland China
HE

10 MEBLTRRRRERZ)

(a) MEBLTRE (&)

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERITR
EBERS

HK$1,000,000
78#1,000,0007T

EUR62,000
62,0008
Us$13

13%7T

HK$80,000,000
78180,000,0007T

HK$2
BT

US$1,200,000
1,200,000% 70

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T

HK$100,500,000
7%100,500,0007C

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group

sREHAZ
s/ AREE
BEEAL

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

EERBUR

Steel trading
HHES

Steel trading
HEg5
Investment holding

REER

Steel processing

#mEmIT

Investment holding

BERR

Steel trading
L

Steel processing
HEmT

Steel processing
sEmT
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

4

Indirectly held: (continued)
RERE : (&)

Hing Wah Metals Factory Limited
RELTHARAT

Hillot Limited

Tai Xin Minerals Limited

BEREBERRAR (Note ()
(H10)

REREEFXERAF (Note ()
(Hith)

KERERXARNAF (Note ()
(Hit)

Yangzhou Times Industrial
Limited (Note (ii))
BNEREXBRRR ML)

Yinmain Industrial Limited

EREXARAT

Place of
incorporation/
operations and
kind of legal entity

s EE
WRRAEDL

Hong Kong limited liability
company

ERARAMLH

Hong Kong limited liability
company

ERARRAAH

The British Virgin Islands
limited liability company
AERRHEAREMARA

Mainland China
HE

Mainland China
HE

Mainland China
HE

Mainland China
i

Hong Kong limited liability
company

ERARAMLH
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10 MBAFIIREREER(E)

(a) MEBLTRE (&)

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERITR
EBERS

HK$5,000,000
JBH5,000,0007

HK$500,000
7 %500,0007T

US$164
164%7T

HK$50,000,000
75150,000,0007T

1S$39,000,000
39,000,000% 7T

RMB37,793,500
AEH37,793 5007

RMB61,000,000
AEK%61,000,0007C

HK$2
BT

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group

sREHAZ
s AREE
BEEAL

100%

100%

70.12%

70.12%

70.12%

70.12%

69%

100%

Principal activities

EERBUR

Investment holding

RARR

Securities investment

ARE

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding
RERR

Mineral resources

Mineral resources

Commercial property

ARBIHE

Property holding
BENE
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(i) Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, R3=mal& = 5
ABR/AF], Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Limited, &
ERBBEBERAAR, KERERBEFR LA and B
FEEX AR AT are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Mainland China to be operated for 50 years
up to March 2050, 21 years up to December 2028, 24 years
up to July 2017, 30 years up to December 2037, 20 years
up to September 2029 and 10 years up to December 2017,
respectively.

(i) Yangzhou Times Industrial Limited is a sino-foreign equity
joint venture established in Mainland China to be operated
for 40 years up to April 2039.

The above list includes only those subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 December
2014.

Balances with subsidiaries

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$476,493,000
(2013: HK$940,403,000) which are unsecured, non-
interesting bearing and not repayable within one
year, all the outstanding balances with subsidiaries
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests for the
period is approximately HK$243,292,000 (2013:
HK$321,816,000), of which approximately
HK$239,465,000 (2013: HK$215,173,000) is
for Yangzhou Times Industrial Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Yangzhou Group”). The Yangzhou
Group is included in the disposal group classified as
held for sale for the year ended 31 December 2014.

10 MBLTRRRRERZ)

(a)

(b)

(c)

MEBARRRE(E)
Kz -

() BEAFZE(LEB)BERAF - ®xm
BARZESERAT  RERkERESM
BRAR  EERSBREERAA -
KEBEHEERAAEKGRER
¥ARARARFBK S ZINEE
Bh% EEHHNARTEE=T
AZF=A Z+—FE=ZT=-N
F+=-A ZTHFE-T—tFLt
A Z+&=2=-FT=tF+=A
T+ EFEZEAFRARTEFEES
T—+tF+=-A-

(il BNBREEERAFZARBEMKL
ZHINEELE  EEHANTFERE
—E=NFWA -

AEFFIEBREEFRREUAEER
EEZHCZHBAR - EFR S
FINETEMBRRZHE  HES
RIRBRITE °

WRE-F-mE+-A=+—A
I RN - HBARR
BEMRHERER -

P 1B 2 F) R B%

BB ARRRINDAEBK
476,493,000t (=T —=4F : &
#£940,403,0007T ) EHH - B F|
BATNER—FRNER  FIBHEE
EAfff B A Rl R EIEE - BT 8
NN ESREFERR o

EXFEkREDS

BRI RS N
243,292,000 L (=& — = F
7 1 321,816,000 7T ) +
BMNEREXER QR REM
BAal([HBINER ) HHEK
239,465,000 (=T —=%F : &
¥ 215,173,000t ) - HEE - Z
—MEF+-A=+—HILFE 5
MNEBBRECHEATEER
ﬁqa

o B
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 10 MBLTIREREER(Z)
(continued)

(c) Material non-controlling interests(continued) (c) EXFEiEDSZ)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries BT /E 2 BIHE BT 755 & BB A FEFE
with material non-controlling interests R 1
Set out below are the summarised financial HFEFERESTEAEBASE
information for Yangzhou Group that has non- M2 BN B e B 7% &R E
controlling interests that are material to the Group. T
Yangzhou
Group
BEHER
2013
HK$'000
BT T
Non-controlling interests percentage R ERA L 31%
Current assets mENE E 125,077
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,027,610
Current liabilities MEAE (95,891)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (362,689)
Revenue W zs 81,988
Profit for the year FERAAH 93,265
Other comprehensive income Hez2EKA 19,459
Total comprehensive income 2EWALLTE 112,724
Total comprehensive income allocated to DB IR ER A R A B
non-controlling interests 34,944
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IEIE IR m AR B 3,843
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10

1

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(c) Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests (continued)

Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash generated from investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

10 MBAFIIREREER(E)

() EXFERMEEE)

H1E 2\ RIBE B 75 B L K I
Wi ()

Yangzhou
Group
HHEE
2013
HK$'000
BETT

EEEYEENFRSE 32,181
KB EHEENFIRS 4,835

MEEEMANERES (9,558)

The information above is the amount before inter-

company eliminations.

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 1

(a)

Investments in associates

BiE

ERERBRE 2L HRISHE

LFIRER R

(a) BEEAFRR

Group
8
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At 1 January R= )E] H 75,194 72,148
Share of (losses)/profits of associates FT{h B & 2 )
(F518) /& F (459) 799
Share of other comprehensive IR (aL NG e ]

(expense)/income of associates (XH) /WA 91) 799
Dividends received 2R B (4,592) (742)
Currency translation differences BE¥ER =5 (1,812) 2,190
Transferred to disposal group ERESEAFELE

classified as held for sale (Note 19) (H1e£19) (3,986) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 64,254 75,194
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11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11 BEATIREIRES(Z)

(continued)
(a) Investments in associates (continued) (a) WMEBLATRE(Z)
Particulars of investments in associates as at 31 MN-ZT—pE+— A=+— QB
December 2014: NGB T BE
Particulars
of issued and Country of Percentage of Measurement
Name fully paid capital incorporation interest held method
ERTRERAKF R A% 3L BEEE
218 #iE EX Aol HEHE
Indirectly held:
BERE
Masteel (Yangzhou) US$20,000,000, Mainland China 29% Equity
Processing & Distribution  unlisted M S
Co. Ltd. 20,000,000% T
S5 () $0 1 FLEm
MIABRARA
T.0.P. (Hong Kong) HK$1,998,010, Hong Kong 48.33% Equity
Investment Company unlisted B e g
Limited (Note) #51#1,998,0107T -
=B (BB RE FLEm
BRDBE(HEE)
Topyield Limited (Note) HK$3, Hong Kong 48.33% Equity
ERAERRR(AE) unlisted B g
3T
FLEm
China Land Assets Limited HK$100, Hong Kong 45% Equity
MAEEARRAT unlisted N e g
A 1007T -
FLEm
China Land Holdings HK$100, Hong Kong 45% Equity
International Limited unlisted B e g
(Note) AE1007T -
EEEREER AR FLEm
(Kist)
Note: Hiat -
China Land Holdings International Limited directly holds 33.33% RZZT—WE+=ZA=+—0  HiAEEER
equity interest of T.0.P. (Hong Kong) Investment Company Limited BERAREEFAEmaL(BE)REEFR
and 33.33% equity interest of Topyield Limited as at 31 December AR33.33%HIRHE R Em AR A RI33.33%
2014, HRSAE o
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11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11 BEAFRIRERE)
(continued)

(a) Investments in associates (continued) (a) BiZELAFRE(E)
Aggregate information of the Group’s associates 7R & B 37 FE{E Il 22 KB & R Rl RV 4r
that are not individually material: A&k
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s RNEBFTIGH & A A
share of associates RAESE
Profit or loss I sk B 18 (459) 799
Other comprehensive Hez2mE(Zd),/
(expense) /income WA (91) 799
Total comprehensive 2E(ZHE),
(expense) /income WA 428 (550) 1,598
(b) Balances with associates (b) BEBLATFIREER
Except for the amount due from an associate BBt RARRAD BB
amounting to approximately HK$2,553,000 (2013: 2,553,000 (= —=F : %
HK$2,464,000) which bears interest at 10% (2013: 2,464,0007T) st F B RI0E(ZF
10%) per annum, all the outstanding balances with —=F :108)  fTEHT EEE
associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and RABERGERR - RFERRE
repayable on demand. SKEFIEFK ©
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(a) Group

12 #BBSz&mIA

(a) %H
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
At 31 December 2014 R-Z=—@OF BROFHE
+=-RA=+—H H® BEEZIIE
B R HWEE X ]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B¥ETT BETT
Assets as per consolidated IR4FEBEAGBR
balance sheet & E
Financial assets at fair value 22 F{&:& BB 55
through profit or loss RO EEE - 1,455 1,455
Bills and accounts receivable fEUZEHE I fE IR TE 1,357,569 - 1,357,569
Deposits and other mRekET
receivables MR 91,514 - 91,514
Due from associates /N DN /N 33,784 - 33,784
Due from a related company Bg:&# Q&)X K 1,751 - 1,751
Cash and bank balances He RIBTT4 128,992 - 128,992
1,613,610 1,455 1,615,065
Liabilities at
amortised cost
At 31 December 2014 ®-ZE—ME+"A=+—H REMEE
AR & R
HK$'000
BETT
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet Z4FABEBBERMEE
Borrowings (excluding finance lease ER(TEEREHESR)
liabilities) 633,246
Finance lease liabilities BMEREAR 446
Due to a related company REAE R RIFIE 23,315
Bills and accounts payable FENT Z 9 R B IRIE 429,111
Other payables and accruals HEREMIRERERER 192,725
1,278,843
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 12 HWRBSZze&mMIAE)

(a) Group (continued) (a) &£E(E)

Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
At 31 December 2013 R-BE—=%F /NS |
+=ZA=+—H B BRERYK
K e R HEE 1BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT BT T
Assets as per consolidated IZR4FEBEABGBR
balance sheet MNEE
Financial assets at fair value 12 A EFEBIEZ
through profit or loss FIRE IS B E = 1,416 1,416
Derivative financial PTEEMIA
instruments - 556 556
Bills and accounts receivable [EUZEIE I fE IR IE 1,130,252 — 1,130,252
Deposits and other Ze RETEEGK
receivables 78,294 - 78,294
Due from associates AN UGN 33,328 = 33,328
Due from a related company @& R 5K 1,751 = 1,751
Cash and bank balances e RIBITER 164,992 — 164,992
1,408,617 1,972 1,410,589
Liabilities
at fair value Other financial
through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F b /N | REESHR R
+=-—A=+—H BiRBRTYIR AMRAY
MEE HespaE Rk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEEFIT BT
Liabilities as per consolidated x4 & B EBEX
balance sheet EON=E
Derivative financial PESMT A
instruments 2,496 - 2,496
Borrowings (excluding ERCIEERE
finance lease liabilities) HEAR) - 918,084 918,084
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE - 909 909
Due to a related company R ESEN T RIA - 23,315 23,315
Bills and accounts payable  EfTE4E & EIRIE — 177,073 177,073
Other payables and accruals £ & & FIRIE K ESt
=g - 141,764 141,764
2,496 1,261,145 1,263,641
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

12 MBS ZE&MIA(E)

(b) Company (b) &F]
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BAFE
BN-E—NE HH BBRRAZIIR
At 31 December 2014 +=RA=+—8H R HEE HE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BETRT EBETT
Assets as per balance sheet ZEERBEBERNEE
Financial assets at fair value 1R AT {EFHE BB
through profit or loss IRE BT IS EE - 1,122 1,122
Deposits and other Ze RETEIK
receivables 1,773 - 1,773
Due from subsidiaries M B A B R K 973,795 - 973,795
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTES 650 - 650
976,218 1,122 977,340
Liabilities at
amortised cost
BMMEEE
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—MFE+_A=+—H ARBIRE
HK$'000
BETT
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEABRMNAEE
Due to subsidiaries NN 15,742
Other payables and accruals HERMIRERESER 71,115
86,857
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

12 BRENBSZEMIA(E)

(b) Company (continued) (b) 2T (&)
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F BAFE
+=-A=+—A” B FiBREBE&EIIR
2 FEWUR MEE 4a%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
Assets as per balance sheet ZAEBBXRNEE
Financial assets at fair value ZAF{EZEBEZR
through profit or loss PR O BF 75 B B - 968 968
Deposits and other Ze RETEEGK
receivables 64 - 64
Due from subsidiaries M B A B R 1,446,362 = 1,446,362
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITARR 695 = 695
1,447,121 968 1,448,089
Liabilities at
amortised cost
bire: XicIDWIN
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+ZA=+—H AR BIE
HK$'000
BT
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEBBERNAR
Due to subsidiaries i) NGO 18,199
Other payables and accruals HEREMIRERERER 1,905
20,104
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13 INVENTORIES 13 #8®

Group

%=
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
Raw materials AR 13,319 23,988
Work-in-progress R 4,506 6,194
Finished goods BUAK 24,212 42,656
Consumables SHIEM 995 4,418
43,032 77,256
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and FERAPHERRERLIAHEKAR
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately B & B AT 4978 %65,891,146,0007T( —

HK$5,891,146,000 (2013: HK$4,241,161,000). T— =4 : #%4,241,161,0007T) °

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 14 BRAOFEEBERRIIRHMBEEE

OR LOSS
Group Company
1] 2T
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Listed equity securities ETRAREES
— Hong Kong — &5 1,200 1,098 1,122 968
— Overseas — 85N 255 318 - -
Market value of listed equity FHRRAZE A < T{E
securities 1,455 1,416 1,122 968
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value BEAFEERERINENVFEEENA
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income and FEEE  EREEREKAIEBIRA
net (losses)/gains” in the consolidated income statement K (E18) Uz 58 5|k (R
(see Note 27). 27) °
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their FTERAESF AN FEIBEEEERT
current bid prices in an active market. BZHREHERE -
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15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 fT4EeMmTITH
Group
£H
2014 2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HgE = BE =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT T
Commodity swaps contracts &g Ei4& 4 - - 556 2,496
Derivatives holding for trading purpose are classified as EEBERBTTETENBARBEENR
current assets or liabilities. afE -
There is no outstanding commodity swap contract at RZE—NF+ZA=1+—HRBRRE

16

31 December 2014. The notional principal amounts of
outstanding commodity swap contracts at 31 December
2013 were approximately HK$37,274,000.

THEREREY R =F+=
A=+—8 XETHEREHELON
BHBEARE L EEEEIT,274,0007T ©

BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BURRE - EUIRER X TERR
Group Company
£m NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEETIT BETIT R IT
Bills and accounts receivable fEWZEE K EUIKRE 1,360,631 1,130,252 - =
Less: allowance for B FEUIRIR
impairment of BERHE
accounts receivable (3,062) = - -
Bills and accounts JiE Uk ZE 15 T e IR
receivable, net (Note (a)) B - %% (f1:E@)) 1,357,569 1,130,252 = =
Loan to a former director/ RBIEE EEEX
director (Note 39(d)) (K71:£39(d)) 490 817 - -
Deposits, prepayments and Hzi AR
other receivables ® HEUGK 196,330 198,047 2,029 447
196,820 198,864 2,029 447
Less: non-current portion B FEREIES
Loan to a former AEE/ E%
director/director, Bx He
other receivables FEUR K
and prepayments SEEDE (39,158) (39,755) = =
Current portion TRENEB (D 157,662 159,109 2,029 447
1,515,231 1,289,361 2,029 447
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16 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for sale
of goods ranging from 30 days to 180 days. Rentals in respect of
leased properties are payable by the tenants on a monthly basis.

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable is as follows:

16

B RE BRRRRETEE®(E)

wisz -

AEELERHERAGTERF=1THE
—BNTHZERY - BEWEZES KA
MAEFPEAXN -

FEUR IR T IR IR MR B D AT AT

Group
8

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT T T
Within three months =EAA 1,234,957 961,348
Over three months but within six months HBim =18 A m A EA 121,399 168,857
Over six months but within twelve months BB NEAmARBE T —@EA 1,175 47
Over twelve months BB+ @A 38 -
1,357,569 1,130,252

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to
bills and accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of
customers, internationally dispersed.

As of 31 December 2014, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$128,460,000 (2013: HK$387,050,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based on past
experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing

PR 15 I FE MR IR B B K E B
R ARAKBERZEF  BHERL
i

R-Z—FE+=-A=+—0 " BHERRK
1B /9 FE YR IR T8 49 7% %5 128,460,000 L (=&
— =% : ##387,050,0007T) ° HEFIBE
HREBMEBEANVERENBE LIRS - 1R
BREMNCR BRI EEEARIE - SR

analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows: WRTERIRE AT T -
Group
%M

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within three months =@EARA 7,023 231,529
Over three months but within six months BB =18 A m AN EA 121,399 155,521
Over twelve months BiBEt+ @A 38 -
128,460 387,050
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(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) As of 31 December 2014, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$3,062,000 were impaired and provided for (2013: Nil). The
individually impaired receivables mainly related customers, which
are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing

analysis of these receivables is as follows:

Within three months

16 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

=EAR

16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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B RE BRRRRETEE®(E)

Biat - (&)

(0 JEUIRTEAE3,062,000/R =T — N4
+ZA=+—HEBETRE(ZZ—=F:
) o AR ERERKKEEZHEINEA
EERRLEELCHTRNEFEH - 5

FEWIRIRER DATANT
Group
=E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETT BETFT
3,062 -

(d)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts receivable

are denominated in the following currencies:

(d) AR [ e M 32 0 X M R T O MR T 2 B A
THEEREN

Group
4]

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

uss T 1,265,975 1,027,719

RMB AREE 41,182 50,173

HK$ BT 4,292 37,119

EUR BT 46,120 15,238

Other HE - 3

1,357,569 1,130,252

(e)  Movements on the Group's allowance for impairment of accounts () RUIRBREREZENT :
receivable are as follows:
Group
£E

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

EB¥TT BT T

At 1 January R—A—H - -

Provision for accounts receivable impairment JE T 0 1B R (B B 3,062 105
Accounts receivable written off during the year A% rfp AN gE Uk [@l i il 64

as uncollectible # FE U IR 18 - (105)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,062 -

The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts
receivable have been included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is

no expectation of recovering additional cash.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had certain bills and
accounts receivable of approximately HK$285,979,000
(2013: Nil) were pledged to secure against certain of the

Group’s bank borrowings (See Note 23).

HERERKRERFEORINBERNE BHE
ERABRaRP —RETRERNA - £84E
1RE MR ABEE R B ETRA B EREIH
HNR S BEREY o

R=ZFE—NM&E+=-A=+—H " &8
EBHEKREE R EWKRIELBK
285,979,000/t(=ZE—=F : E)EA
o ERRTERERB(RME23) -
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16

17

18

BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The other classes within bills, accounts and other
receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying amounts of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

DUE FROM/TO A RELATED COMPANY

The outstanding balances represent amounts due from/
to a subsidiary of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited,
a company in which Mr. Chan Shing and Ms. Lau
Ting, the directors of the Company have beneficial
interests. The outstanding balances with the related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

16

17

BRE BRIRRRETEER(Z)

EUEE - BUIRIE N E TR AD
HEsBERNRAREERERE -

EHE AR - FERRORERERE
ERLESBRYGRAIREE - ANEE
TRETMERERNER® -

MEAFIRR RAELFREA
BRABHRRR  NEZERERQRIA

THEBARZKE  MARREERMR
FERBBELETRZARERBEAE

&= o RIS REE R R FUR R
RENARBERER - FRNHERFR

BERESFEABE1,751,0000( ==

demand. The maximum outstanding balance due from — =4 : 7B¥1,751,0007T) °
a related company during the year was approximately
HK$1,751,000 (2013: HK$1,751,000).
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 18 B e&RMBITHER
Group Company
£E= /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T BT BT T
Cash at banks and on hand 7T REFHE L 126,766 142,335 650 695
Short-term bank deposits 42 EA$RIT1FE 50 2,226 22,657 - =
128,992 164,992 650 695
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18

19

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.01% (2013: 0.48%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 4 days (2013: 114 days).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had certain short-term
bank deposits of approximately HK$1,716,000 (2013:
HK$22,657,000) pledged with the banks (see Note
38(0)).

At 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$30,829,000 (2013: HK$51,554,000)
are denominated in RMB and placed with banks in
Mainland China, in which approximately HK$15,587,000
(2013: Nil) have been included in assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale. The remittance of these funds
out of Mainland China is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the Chinese Government.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

On 18 August 2014, the Company as vendor of the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of Burwill
China Portfolio Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Disposal Shares”) and Charm Best
Investments Inc. as vendor of the sale of the entire issued
share capital of Dynamic Gain Holding Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Charm Best Investments Inc., (the
“Charm Best’s Disposal Shares”) on the one hand and
China Land Assets Limited on the other hand entered
into the conditional sale and purchase agreement dated
18 August 2014 as supplemented by supplemental
agreement dated 19 August 2014, pursuant to which (i)
the Company conditionally agreed to dispose and China
Land Assets Limited conditionally agreed to acquire the
Disposal Shares at a consideration of RMB199,780,000,
and (ii) Charm Best Investments Inc. conditionally agreed
to dispose and China Land Assets Limited conditionally
agreed to acquire the Charm Best’s Disposal Shares at a
consideration of RMB60,000,000. The principal assets of
Burwill China Portfolio Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Disposal Group”) is the Yangzhou Times Square, a large
scale shopping centre located in Mainland China.

18

19

BeRBITRHER(E)

EHRITERNERFER0.01E(Z
T—=F:0488)  ZFEFHWFH
FHMBARAR(ZE—=F : 114K) °

RN_ZBE—mE+—_A=+—H £@4F
B0 52 BRER 1T 17 ;A0 B %61,716,0007T
—ZT—=4% : #¥22,657,0007T) K
B FERIT(RHIEE38(0)) °

R-BE-—NME+—-A=+—H K%
N R 1T 45 64 4075 30,829,000 ( =&
— =4 : #%51,554,0007T) R AAR
M AEEENTFRRPEZRT
Hr o #978%15,587,000t( — T —=
FEIBREENEAGESBREE -
HPHELZEESSXRRAF BB
B2 INEE B FRIE -

SEBFRERERERARREKILE
BERG

R=FE—WFENA+NR  KREHESE
HEARRQAE2E W E A RBurwill China
Portfolio Limited & & 2 81T A% 2N ([
B ])) 2B R RS —HHECharm Best
Investments Inc. {E & {1 & Charm Best
Investments Inc. % & [ff & A & Dynamic
Gain Holding Limited & & B # 17 & &
([ Charm BestHZER M |) v B HE S
—HEFBEERBRARRIT 1
FNATN\REGKGEER(KE=Z
—MNENA+NBEREHEAT) &
It ()VARRR B EEREHEW A
BEEBRAREKGHMEARZEE H#
& R{ERAKNK199,780,0007T
(i) Charm Best Investments Inc. B (&
HHRELEY BENEEEAR ARG
15136 [E) = B8 B Charm BestH ;215 -
RE & AR 60,000,0007T ° Burwill
China Portfolio Limited & E Kf B 2 7
([FEEEDZEEEEANVETR 2
ABEEYHR LB MNERES °
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19 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 19
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (continued)

The transaction has not been completed as at 31
December 2014 and is expected to be completed in
2015. The assets and liabilities related to the Disposal
Group, have been presented as held for sale as at 31
December 2014 following the approval of such disposal
by the shareholders of the Company on 31 October
2014. Details of the transaction are included in the
circular of the Company dated 15 October 2014.

(a) Assets of disposal group classified as held for

SERFERERERARREKRILLE
BRB(E)

R-ZZE-—MOF+-_R=+—H%XHYL
ﬂi%ﬁi CEHR T -RFREK o BR
RARER-_Z—NOE+A=+—H#t
/Euiﬁﬁ{é FEEENEERAER
—OFE+-—A=+—B2JBFE
BEMAE - RHFBARARF-F
—OE+A+TRBAZBRA -

(a) PERFERERE

sale

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Land use rights T 3 fE AR 994 =
Property, plant and equipment MIEE - HEER N AR AE 13,214 -
Investment properties BEYE 1,064,988 =
Investments in associates /N B =y 3,986 =

Deposits, prepayments and other e BNRK
receivables FEUL R 11,131 -
Cash and bank balances e RRITHERR 16,161 =
Other assets He&E 3,499 =
1,113,973 -

(b) Liabilities of disposal group classified as held

(b) SEEFEREAR

for sale

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T
Borrowings B3 182,950 -

Other payables and accruals HERMIRER
Bt ER 35,647 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFRSHARE 214,108 -
Other liabilities Hv&af’ 4,171 =
436,876 -
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19 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 19
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS (continued)

() Cumulative income or expense recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to
disposal group classified as held for sale

Translation adjustment

£

1=

i

i
g
OH]

SERFERERERARREKRILLE
BRB(E)

() REEMAR ERERBERFT

EREZRHBARXZH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETIT
60,898 -

Analysis of the result of discontinued operations,
and the result recognised on the re-measurement of

disposal group, is as follows:

ERIEREXB 2 GERBRERN

AE OMAERAT

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
(restated)
(gE5)
Revenue A 171,603 170,265
Expenses =33 (43,870) (47,742)
Profit before income tax of discontinued & PTIEHATE 421 & &
operations EiE 2 BT 127,733 122,523
Income tax expense Frigfi sz (31,887) (31,042)
Profit for the year from discontinued FERBERILKE
operations EIEBEF 95,846 91,481
Profit for the year from discontinued FERBERIELEE
operations attributable to: EBRNEBER -
— Owners of the Company —ARRTEEFEA 65,685 62,496
- Non-controlling interests — FEIE AR M 30,161 28,985
Profit for the year from discontinued FEBRIEKE
operations XA 95,846 91,481
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19 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 19 DELEFEEESERARRERILE
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED BEEE)

OPERATIONS (continued)

(d) Cash flows (d) B&R

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT BT T

Operating cash flows EEEHNRERE (17,788) 37,724
Investing cash flows BREFHNERERE 4,046 (2,137)
Financing cash flows BMEFDNERERE (15,254) (10,217)
Total cash flows RIS ME (28,996) 25,370

Investment properties transferred to disposal group
classified as held for sale are leased or available
for lease to third parties under operating leases.
Details about such operating lease arrangements are
included in Note 36 (b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of land use rights,
buildings and investment properties included in
disposal group classified as assets held for sale of
approximately HK$1,057,752,000 were pledged to
secure against certain banking facilities granted to
the Group (see Note 38 (d)).

142 Burwill Holdings Limited B & 82 & IR 24 &

TRANFEREEERABZRE
MEAKERET AL ERA]HE
THE=%F REKEHELTHHZ
BREELRE M EWRMEEI60)A

RZFE—WOFE+=-_A=+—80 "
HhoEASEEEMN LM
A BEFREEMEHNEE
1,057,752,00070E FHEIF - EA
REE 2 RITRE T G (R
38(d)) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 M B HRME

20 SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY

20 BE—XKEREFLF

Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
®EREE (-}
(thousands) HK$'000
(F35H) BT T

At 1 January 2013 R-_E—=F—H—H 4,189,660 418,966

Issue of shares (Note (b)) BITD (BaEb)) 397,052 39,705

At 31 December 2013, R-_ZE—=F+-A=+—8"

1 January 2014 and —T—HF-—H—HBK
31 December 2014 —E—mFE+-/F=+—H 4,586,712 458,671

Notes: K1zt -

(@)  The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 6,800 million (@) EHBRIETHBRERBER(ZZ—=
shares (2013: 6,800 million shares) with a nominal value of HK$0.1 F 688 SREEABEIIT(ZZ
per share (2013: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid. — =% : GRBK0.1T) - MADEITRNG

HERHHE -
(b)  Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 17 April 2013 (the b)) BE-ZFZ-—=FOUA+LtRZESHH

“Placing Agreement”), the Company allotted and issued an
aggregate of 397,052,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
on 26 April 2013 to at least six independent investors at a price
of HK$0.122 each under the general mandate. The closing price
per share of the Company on 17 April 2013, being the date of
the Placing Agreement, as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HK$0.122. Net proceeds of approximately HK$48 million raised
were used as general working capital.

(TEEEHE])  AARERZ=ZZT—=FN
AZ+B  BE—RMUERE  ZERB
B2 T EREZERBEITAAAEH
397,052,000 ¥ E @R RN T ELNEE
UREE - RZE—=FMWAB+LH(HE
& a2 B H) Bl A AT AT IR0 AR D B AR 1 e
BAERKRB0.1227T - IBRBFENS
48008 THIE—MREELS -
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21

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY 21 DEGEFAZHH - FEERFLF
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on ARAFR—ZE——FXANBRITZER
8 June 2011, shareholders of the Company approved the RBFEARS RS EE R B E
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2011 Option HE(ZZE——FEREE]) - BiE
Scheme”). Under the 2011 Option Scheme, the Company —E——FEREE  ARFRET
may grant options to employees (including executive AR MEMBARZEL(BFEEHTT
directors or non-executive directors) of the Company and EENIFRTES)BREUZEARAL
its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company, AZHn  BERR&ZZERFAQAE
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share BATIRAN 230% (N ET A B 1718 B A 4
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for METHRG) - BRZRBEHRES
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options. The RE WA DR  (VEREBRES
subscription price will be determined by the directors, B P2 P EE 3R W (B ¢ (i) R L8
and will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing Fi% % B T B 22 5 B WFNEE RS P EE 3R 2 F
price of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on HWRTHE : RiVRMPEE=E285
the trading day of granting the options; (ii) the average E o —E——FEREAE Z2EWRSE
of the closing prices of the shares quoted on the Stock —E——FXXANBHE  AE+F
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding H1Z 5 BIR sz 40T (] B85 A RE -
the date of granting the options; and (iii) the nominal H_E——FEREAEZIEXEEY
value of the shares. The 2011 Option Scheme shall be ZSHEBNERE TR RIER -
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 8 June 2011, after which period no further options
will be granted or accepted but the provisions of the
2011 Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
Movements in the number of share options outstanding BAITEEZ B EEE R EE B
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as EHTEEEHWT
follows:
2014 2013
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option  (thousands)
SEkE GHERE
FEYTEE MERE FHTRE Bk
(&) (F&h) (&) (F&t)
At 1 January nN—A—H - - 0.50 80,200
Granted B 0.30 277,300 = =
Expired R = = 0.50 (80,200)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 0.30 277,300 - -
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21

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

Out of 277,300,000 outstanding options, 138,650,000
options were exercisable. No share option was exercised
or expired during the year ended 31 December 2014.
All of the outstanding 80,200,000 share options as at 1
January 2013 expired in 2013.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year had the
following expiry date and exercise price:

21

DRI zEH -FRERF LR

(%)
(A5 )/

R R 1TE2277,300,000 A% -
138,650,000 E IR A P] T1T(E - B E
—E-—ME+-_A=+—HILFE - #
EEREETFESEE - R —=F
—H—H ' HAR771#280,200,000% 8%
¥ BERIZE—=F2IFH -

REREARITEZ BEIRAE B A RTT
EEMT

Exercise price

Expiry date E|/®A A

—E——FERESE
—E-R"F+—A=+H

2011 Option Scheme
30 November 2016

in HK$
per share
option Options
SiERE (thousands)
fE{% Bk
(#T) (Fs&t)
2014 2013
0.30 277,300 -

The vesting period of the options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercisable period.

According to Black-Scholes options pricing model,
the fair value of options granted as at 31 December
2014 was approximately HK$27,730,000 (2013: Nil) of
which the Group recognised a share option expenses of
approximately HK$18,173,000 (2013: Nil) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

BREsFBYHEHE AEETES
FImER L -

BRI m—AT R AT | BB
R-_E—NE+-_A=+—HBRKRHE
&tz A FE LB 27,730,0007T (=
T—=F: /) HhXEEREE=
T-—ME+-"A=+—HILFEEER
BEIE ST 478 8518,173,000 T (=&
—=F )
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22 OTHER RESERVES AND (ACCUMULATED LOSSES)/ 22
RETAINED PROFITS

HE#BR (REBR) REIRH

Group
£E
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contrbuted ~ redemption ~ Revaluation ~ Translation ~ compensation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve  adjustments reserve profits Total
BAEE WRH% 2
R &E BRGE BARH 1 BftGE hERE fERE RBEA 28
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
e BT BT BT eI BT BETT BETT BRI
At 1 January 2013 R=%-=%-f-A 726,956 (50,025) 99,172 12,037 1213 153,676 13,553 66,483 1,033,065
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (3,667) (3,667)
Share of other comprehensive fiEBEAREY
income of associates ETON - - - - - 799 - = 799
Currency translation differences ERERZE
- Group -%8 - - - - - 2433 - - 2433
- Associates N - - - - - 2,190 - - 2,190
Issue of shares Bk 8,735 - - - - - - - 8,735
Share issue expenses ORGSO (280) - - - - - - - (280)
Release upon lapse of REBRERNE
share options g3 - - - - - - (13,553) 13,553 -
Acquisttion of additional WEHEAR
interests in a subsidiary BhMER - (1,555) - - = = = = (1,555)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=%+-A=1-H 735411 (51,580) 99,172 12,037 1213 179,098 - 76,369 1,061,720
Group
%8
Retained
Capital Share-based profits/
Share Capital ~ Contributed  redemption  Revaluation  Translation compensation (Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve  adjustments reserve losses) Total
#5ER NRfRRZ  RERN/
EhER fed | BARR 1] Efi R0 hHRE WRERE  (RHER) ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT 2T TR ERTT T TR TR ERTT 2T
At 1 January 2014 R=F-mE-A-A 735,411 (51,580) 99,172 12,037 1,213 179,098 - 76,369 1,061,720
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (279,128) (279,128)
Share of other comprehensive fiEBEARLY
expense of associates 2ExA = = = = = (91) = = (9
Currency translation differences EHELZR
~Group -£8 - - - - - (18,081) 2 = (18,041)
- Associates -BERA - - - - - (1,812) - - (1,812)
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE:
- value of employee services -EERKEE = = = = = = 18173 = 18173
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-BE+=A=1-H 735,411 (51,580) 99,172 12,037 1,213 159,154 18,173 (202,759) 780,821
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22 OTHER RESERVES AND (ACCUMULATED LOSSES)/

RETAINED PROFITS (continued)

22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HEREMER (RiER) RIBAH(E)

Company
28
Retained
Capital Share-based profits/
Share redemption Contributed compensation (Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
EFOR LEhxfz REERN/
EinaR 51 ] BARR HERE (RER) #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BB BB BB
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=%-f-H 726,956 12,037 228,004 13,553 608,747 1,589,297
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (575,140) (575,140)
Issue of shares BIRG 8,735 = = = = 8,735
Share issue expenses Lo (280) = = = = (280)
Release upon lapse of KRB
share options E% - - - (13,553) 13,553 =
At 31 December 2013 W-B-=%+-fA=1-H 735,411 12,037 228,004 - 47,160 1,022,612
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A—H 735,411 12,037 228,004 - 47,160 1,022,612
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (540,840)  (540,840)
Employee share option scheme: [EERMRETE
- value of employee services -EERBER - - - 18173 - 18,173
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=A=1—H 735,411 12,037 228,004 18,173 (493,680) 499,945

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the
book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries
acquired; and (ii) transfer from share premium account. It
can be utilised for issuance of bonus shares or for capital
redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the
condition that a company shall not declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BABERTY() It 21T 2 T E EE AN
BRRZFEEREECERE © KiH
BROEERBA - BABRSRA]HIITA
Pk A B EE ANERIE A o

REERE-NN\—F2FE AR
BRA] DR AR - BORDIKE - 2
AIRREEEIREBXR(NVEEEZAIE
REEINRERE SBITRARERND
wERZAAM - RNRBTEEE Ml
BB IREARER
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22 OTHER RESERVES AND (ACCUMULATED LOSSES)/ 22 HERBR(BEHEER) REEBA(E)

RETAINED PROFITS (continued)

The Company's reserves (excluding (accumulated losses)/
retained profits) as at 31 December 2014 available for
distribution to shareholders were represented by the

NR-ZZE—ME+_A=+—H - A/
DIREBR Z AR BB E(TEIE(R
SER) REEN) BEBARGLE

contributed surplus of approximately HK$228,004,000 #228,004,000 L (= —=4F : Bk
(2013: HK$228,004,000). 228,004,0007T) ©
23 BORROWINGS 23 H®
Group
1L |
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT R IT
Non-current ERB
Bank borrowings |ITERK = 164,103
Other loans from non-controlling B8 A B FEHEAR AR R Y
shareholders of subsidiaries HEEER 56,807 59,936
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE = 446
56,807 224,485
Current mEh
Bank overdrafts (Note 35(b)) SRITBEZ (K3£35(b)) 997 4
Bank borrowings RITER 575,442 674,041
Other loans EvER - 20,000
Finance lease liabilities HEREAE 446 463
576,885 694,508
Total borrowings BER 633,692 918,993
Secured borrowings are as follows: EERERAT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Bank borrowings RITEXR 218,472 541,217
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 446 909
218,918 542,126
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23 BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2014, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$218,472,000 were secured by certain leasehold
land and land use rights, buildings, bills and accounts
receivable and pledged bank deposits (see Notes 6, 7, 16
and 18). Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured as
the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the
event of default.

At 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$541,217,000 were secured by certain leasehold land
and land use rights, buildings, investment properties,
pledged bank deposits and interest of shares in certain
subsidiaries (see Notes 6, 7, 8 and 18). Finance lease
liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Other loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
not repayable within one year.

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in Note 3.1(c). As at 31 December 2013 and
2014, none of the covenants relating to the drawn down
facilities had been breached.

23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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H®(E)

R=ZZT—WFE+=—A=+—08 ' RTE
TRA) 218,472,000 T A MDA E +
R THERE - EF  BREERE
W BR T8 I 3K 1R SR 1T 17 SR /E R 38 ( BB =
67 16%18) - MEHEGBEER
EEEE BAERANHELEERNE
mREBHAA -

R-ZTE—=F+-RA=+—H - 178
KA B HESA41,217,000 TASMHFAE +
MR THERE  EF  REWHE - K
FRERITIE R 2B 10 I B A A 9 AR 1D 1B 4K
H(RKE6 7 8K%18) - MEHER
BEERLEEER BATEENNHEE
BEMESBFBHAA

BB R B IR AR M B B R AR
e RFERTBER—FREER -

AEEHHRITEEEXBITHASE
ETEEABREBEBENZOMAR -
ZEXLHNEANECREBEENNEER
ZH - BASEERREZY - RIERIA
ERSERERKEER - NEESTEH
ERZELONETER AEEBE
BREBpEcRBAE - PHBERRK
F3.1Q)  N—ZBE—=FKR_-_ZT—MF
+-A=+—8 AEEVEEREGH
ERIREERNRL -
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23 BORROWINGS (continued) 23 BH(E)
At 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Group's borrowings RZE—=FK_ZFT—WNF+_H4
were repayable as follows: =+—H AEEBEXMNEEBELNA
-
Bank borrowings and
overdrafts Other loans
RITERREX HETHER
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BwTRT ABTT #BETT ARTT

Within one year —FR 576,439 674,045 - 20,000
Between one and two years —Z& —F R - 21,795 - -
Between two and five years —ZEFAFR - 71,795 56,807 59,936
Over five years iR R F - 70,513 = =
576,439 838,148 56,807 79,936
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHERE
— minimum lease payments: — R ERK -
Not later than one year BB —F 457 498
Later than one year and not later than BiE—F
five years BETBEAF = 456
457 954
Future finance charges on finance leases BEMHE 2 RKMEE R (11) (45)
Present value of finance lease liabilities mEMHEREZHE 446 909
The present value of finance lease MEHEREZ
liabilities is as follows: HEWT :
Not later than one year BB —F 446 463
Later than one year and not later than BiE—F
five years BREAAF - 446
446 909
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23

24

BORROWINGS (continued) 23 E®|(E)
The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting RBERBARNSTEMNERDT

period are as follows:

2014 2013
Us$ RMB EUR HK$ Us$ RMB EUR HK$
ET AER% BT BT T AR BT BT
Bank borrowings RITER 29% 56% 24% 24% 3.0% 72% 25%  25%
Finance lease liabilities RIAMEEE - - - 49% - - - 6.7%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are EEEFNRASEUTNEE 58
denominated in the following currencies: i :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
us$ T 498,106 522,438
RMB AR 9,545 207,175
HK$ BT 123,485 158,044
EUR BT 2,556 31,336
633,692 918,993
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 24 EBEFRRR
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account RIEFFSHIRE 2 EBMBNT -
is as follows:
Group
fE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
At 1 January R—H—H (182,986) (156,578)
Currency translation differences EE L =58 4,526 (6,247)
Consolidated income statement credit/ TEAaBERsRER
(charge) (k) 19,073 (20,161)
Transfer to disposal group classified as EBEESHEANFESE
held for sale 213,733 -
At 31 December R+=-_HA=+—H 54,346 (182,986)
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into

24 EEFRBIR(E)

FRREMSHEERABZESH(R
BERER —BBiE < & HREHE) 1

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same T -
tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities Investment properties Others Total
BEFRBRAR RENE it 1]
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BETTL EETT BETTL #RTT BETT
At 1 January »=A—-H (166,749) (140,919) (72,654) (67,753) (239,403) (208,672)
Credited/(Charged) to the ERABHRER/
consolidated income statement (H1%) (20,727) (21,158) 39,225 (2,946) 18,498 (24,104)
Currency translation differences EWELEE 4,436 (4,672) 1,184 (1,955) 5,620 (6,627)
Transfer to disposal group classified BEZHFEERE
as held for sale 183,040 - 31,068 - 214,108 -
At 31 December W+-A=1-8 - (166,749) (1,177) (72,654) (1,177) (239,403)
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BERBREE BERERE i it 1]
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK§'000
EhTR  BBTT  EWTR AU #%TR BT ERTR AT
At 1 January R-A-H 1,351 1,120 54,954 50,865 12 109 56,417 52,094
Credited to the consolidated EEARRRER
income statement 169 364 406 3,579 - - 575 3,943
Currency translation differences  SHER£%E 108 (133) (1,204) 510 2 3 (1,094) 380
Transfer to disposal group BREHELE
classified as held for sale - - (261) - (114) - (375) -
At 31 December RtzA=t-H 168 1351 5805 5495 - M SB53 56417
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 24 RIEFRBIR(E)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet as
assets/liabilities not realisable/due within one year:

ERAERNAKREHAEERRA
M BEERE - METREHY &R —
BIERARR - RIA] ROEE PRSI & A BE
EFEHAEEREE - Ert AEE KR
HiE - MIeBREFREEERBERAMN
THR—FRER BPzEE &fF
5l

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRETT BT

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTRE E 54,351 44,979
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFMGHAE (5) (227,965)
54,346 (182,986)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carry forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax
losses of approximately HK$674,636,000 (2013:
HK$630,035,000), which certain amounts are subject
to approval from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department. Tax losses of PRC subsidiaries have an
expiry period of five years, while tax losses of Hong Kong
subsidiaries have no expiry date. Tax losses can be carried
forward to offset future taxable income.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprise
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5-10%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

FEASHEETY R EMRBHRSF =
BIBARRIERT R N E IR Mt 4s e 2
TIBEMER - AEE B RERTIBL S
#674,636,000 (= — =4 : B
630,035,0007T) ' EFHFHFFED
TR B A o B AR 2 FE A A
MIRIEERARST - MEBKILZM
BRARMBRBLEA - HIB A
LASE $5 7R 2R FE SR B LA o

RBFFPBECEAEVE - RHPERM
A2 SNEIRE R RAINEREE TR
ZI BRI I10% AR bR E R
“EEN\EF-A-BERWEAR_-F
TEET A=t —HRRZEM -
O A B SNE R B T RA R R
RIS IRA) - RIEUE 2 FRFNT K AT e
CER - RAKEME - EAMES
5-10% ° At - AEBZARERHEA
WP SL 2 % P B A B BB 2 R ] B R
—EEN\F-A-BREEZEFNMIK
i 2 BB TRHR -
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 24 REFRBWM(E)
At 31 December 2014, no deferred income tax has R-ZE—NWE+-_A=+—8  #HER
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be A B P B A b AR ST 2 B B R B
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject 2N R R EE B F A 2 TR0 R A
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and RAEMBRIEFTISH o MARBERRLEMG
associates established in Mainland China. The aggregate MABBEzREAHH B AR LS A
amount of temporary differences associated with ARETVEH BEAZERZEN _T
investments in subsidiaries and associates in Mainland —FE+-_A=+—"BAHXNAEBKE
China for which deferred income tax liabilities have not 29,668,000 ( —F—=F : YA B
been recognised totalled approximately HK$29,668,000 13,127,0007T) °

at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$13,127,000).

25 BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 25 EMREREGIERE
The ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as RN = K ERIRIBIRER D AT 0
follows:
Group
M|
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within three months —@AR 409,877 159,819
Over three months but within six months BE={E A m I HBaE
7~ E A 54 44
Over six months but within twelve months  #8:i&75{& A i T~ 28
+—{@A 974 655
Over twelve months Be+=—@A 18,206 16,555
429,111 177,073
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts REBERENZEEKEMRENRDS
payable are denominated in the following currencies: AT EE BB
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
us$ ET 406,470 152,564
RMB AR 22,105 21,535
EUR BT 527 2,959
Others HE 9 15
429,111 177,073
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26

27

PROVISION FOR LAND RESTORATION AND
ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

26 THEFRRIRERESEE

Group
%=

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

At 1 January »—HA—H 4,389 4,258
Currency translation differences EHCHE H =% (110) 131
At 31 December nt+—-_A=+—8H 4,279 4,389

The provision for land restoration and environmental
costs is in relation to the estimated costs of complying
with the Group’s obligations for land reclamation. These

costs are expected to be incurred on mine closure, which

THERRRERABRBREANAEH
HEBNREMEBRAZ G5 o LA
ANRBEREBEERFEFG - XA

are based on current mineral reserve estimates.

OTHER INCOME AND NET (LOSSES)/GAINS

IR SRR EE AL o

27 HREBWAREBIR) WaSH

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
(restated)
(&F=7)
Fair value gains/(losses) on: RFE(EE), W
— financial assets at fair value through —ERAVTEEBER
profit or loss PR BT 75 & B 3,037 4,909
— derivative financial instruments —THESRTA (43,025) (8,031)
Interest income on: FEWA -
- bank deposits —ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’ 353 306
— other receivables HerEkx 317 1,171
— due from an associate %%QTK 254 198
Dividend income % B WA 122 17
Gains on disposal of club debentures HESEES W 650 =
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  WRRBHEZ
equipment e 112 9
Others e 3,979 2,982
(34,201) 1,561
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28

29

156 Burwill Hoidings Limited & & #2282 & IR 2 &

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

28 EEHESENER

FIESHERA ~ SHERDHERMN—K
RTBRERANERIMTAT :

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
(restated)
(&E=5)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREREITE
equipment
— owned assets —BEEE 6,326 6,945
— assets held under finance leases —MEHEEE 512 512
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease TE & BT & IR 5
payments 331 331
Amortisation of intangible assets EAERE 7,085 6,818
Operating lease rentals LEHEHES 1,948 1,957
Employee benefit expense (including EERAMMAZ(BIEES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 29) <) (#7£29) 91,144 72,242
Provision for impairment of accounts JE IR R TR (B B 1
receivable 3,062 105
Provision for inventories GFEEE = 320
Net exchange losses/(gains) bE HF 18, (M) 912 (1,770)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN BN & 1,150 1,100
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 29 ERIEFIRAX
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
(restated)
(&=7)
Wages and salaries HeIlE 67,733 66,393
Share options granted to directors and ETEEREBNBRE
employees 18,173 -
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  R{RAK AN — SR E (7R ET &l
(Note (a)) (Kiz(a)) 3,173 3,245
Staff welfare BT ta# 2,065 2,604
91,144 72,242
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the “Original
Scheme"), which is managed by independently administered funds.
The Group’s monthly contributions are based on 5% of employees’
monthly salaries. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of
the Group’s contribution and the accrued interest thereon upon
retirement or leaving the Group after completing ten years of
service or at a reduced scale of 30% to 90% after completing three
to nine years of services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after 1 December 2000,
the Group has arranged for these employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Prior to 1
June 2014, both the employer’s and the employees’ contributions
are subject to a maximum of HK$1,250 per month per employee.
From 1 June 2014, both the employer’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month
per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes to retirement
plans at rates of approximately 14% to 22% of the basic salaries
of its employees in Mainland China, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned schemes was approximately
HK$3,173,000 (2013: HK$3,245,000) without deduction of
forfeited contributions of the Original Scheme.

29 ERBFIRAX(E)

Kkt -

(a)

BHh® - REBREE

AEBAESRELTHSHEHABYUESER
ZREHRFENRB([RED - AEEE
AZHHRIZEE BHHS5%TE - RRAKsL
TR TERBEHRALEE  EEHEE
WEEHEENERRESFE - TRR=
ENERMAATHE30% 290 % Lt IR ©

AEBA-_STEFT_A—BEAAREE
EERH2EBHELTESFTE([RELET
2])  —EHBLETEATENRE /KRG
2 - BEREEFHE ARBREEESR
BIRBAGIELTESEANEE  BAKE
BHESHS%HR - R_T—WFEXA—B
Bl BEEREENSEHRFIESRTEESR
HRAB®1,250t c AT —WENA—H
B EFrREENSEHRFIEZSATEREER
& A&%1,5007C °

BRETEEFIRE  AEEASHETRESS
HEREPHRARGE - AREREESRE
RFEHN4%E22%H - REZFF -
AEEBEAREETERERE MRIENR
BREMNOEE - BREPNRNFTEAERE
MERKEENZHEEZESEME -

RER - NEBY Lillst EEHERE
BHEE3,173,0000 (=T —=F : B
3,245,0007T ) 3 £ 0Bk R 5T 21 4908 Uk 4

E
A °
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

158 Burwill Hoidings Limited & & 82 & IR 24 &

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the

year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

29 ERiE

FIRAZ (&)

Biat - (&)

(b) EERERETEETH

BE-T-MET-A=+—ALFE &

REERITREHNFHNOT -

Employer's
Salaries, contribution Employee
allowances Discretionary to pension  share option
Name of director Fees  and benefits bonuses scheme benefit Total
e BER BRI ERMmRE
£ 31 e i HiFks EEHRR il 1]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT
Executive directors BiTEE
Mr. CHAN Shing (Note (i) BRI ST (HTE2) - 6,099 400 254 295 7,048
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BBREAE - 2,831 200 131 1,442 4,604
Ms. LAU Ting et - 4,812 350 222 295 5,679
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia ERMmat - 1,991 100 92 1,442 3,625
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PERTE = 1,957 150 90 1,442 3,639
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRI EE - 1,957 200 90 1,442 3,689
Mr. YIN Mark (Note (ii)) FU kA (Ha) - 309 = 13 = 322
Mr. YANG Dawei (Note (iii)) BREREM (i) - 428 - - - 428
Mr. ZHU Ming (Note (iv)) KBS (M) - 206 - - - 206
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTEE
directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE 410 - - - 295 705
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BEHELE 300 - - - 295 595
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREAIE S 300 - - - 295 595
Mr. CHIANG Bun BEks 165 - - - 295 460
1,175 20,590 1,400 892 7,538 31,595
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

29 &

ABREFIRAX(#E)

Biat - (&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (b) EEREREEBRTFHMZ)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BE-_ZT—=%+-"B=+—81=%E
year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below: BEFRITHBENFMAOT
Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances  Discretionary to pension
Name of director Fees  and benefits bonuses scheme Total
e EURK RUNGHEIE
EENA ik =R [ EEHK 4z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BEFIT BT BT BEFIT
Executive directors RITES
Mr. CHAN Shing (Note (i) BRI 55 £ (KT et (i) = 5,897 = 245 6,142
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EBRELE - 2,713 - 125 2,838
Mr. YANG Dawei BREEE - 607 - - 607
Ms. LAU Ting 2+ = 4,636 = 214 4,850
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia =13 &+ = 1,915 - 88 2,003
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam BIEFREE - 1,859 - 86 1,945
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRI E = 1,859 100 86 2,045
Mr. YIN Mark (Note (ii)) FUL S (HTaE (i) = 1,669 = 66 1,735
Independent non-executive FHIFRITESE
directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERSAE 363 = = = 363
Mr. HUANG Shenglan =B LA 300 - - - 300
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREAEB A A 300 - - - 300
Mr. CHIANG Bun Bk 144 - - - 144
1,107 21,155 100 910 23,272
Notes: Htat -
(i) The chief executive of the Company is Mr. CHAN Shing, who iy ARBZITHREFAERREE  TAE
is also one of the executive directors of the Company. RARZWTEEFZ— -
(i) Resigned on 12 March 2014. (i) MRZZT—EOF=A+_HEEF-
(i) Resigned on 12 September 2014. (i) MZZT—WOFEAA+_BHEET-

(iv)

Appointed on 16 April 2014 and resigned on 24 July 2014.

(iv)

RZZ—NEFMNA+AAEZER=Z
—ME+ A =+ B BT -
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include five (2013: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one non-director, highest
paid individual for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as
follows:

29 ERBFIMAXZ(E)
Mk (#)
© EfBREFMAL

AEREEERSFHOAMLALRERLQ
(ZF2—Z=F: W) ESF - fNFMEL
NEBOOMPRR - BE-FT—=F+=
A=+—HILFE #HTUFEE &=
FALOFHAT

2013

HK$'000

BT

Salaries, allowance and benefits e RRET 1,056
Discretionary bonuses BiEHS 1,500
Employer’s contributions to pension scheme RINGTEIME EHK 20
2,576

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, no payments
had been made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid
individual in respect of inducement to join or compensation for loss
of office, and no directors or the highest paid individual waived any
of the emoluments.

HE-Z =k =-ZF—WNF+=-A=1+—
BIEFE - N5 B4 E B ok B B E
MEESBEHTATIARE  BHEEEK
EEE AT RERERBE -

30 FINANCE COSTS 30 BMERE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
(restated)
(&E=7)
Interest on: & -

— bank borrowings wholly repayable —RNAEFAZEEEDN
within five years RITEK 33,386 32,907
— other loans —HEpEX 82 285
— finance lease liabilities —-BEHEARE 35 72
33,503 33,264
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31

INCOME TAX CREDIT 31 FiRHRENR
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda ARG RHMARERBEREEZ _T=H
until 2035. The Company’s subsidiaries established in FoREBERFSKILZHEARF
the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin PBRBEIBESER - BAMNEM
Islands income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been BARFEEFELESRE BB EZR
provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the B 216.5%(ZF—=4F : 16.5% )%
estimated assessable profit arising in or derived from B REERPREZHBARBEHZT
Hong Kong for the year. Subsidiaries of the Group in B EPREH - I BEBOETEE EERT
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China enterprise Fr8225%( —Z— =4 :25%):t& -
income tax of 25% (2013: 25%) on their taxable income HEeBiaicHED BRBRHTFEE
determined according to Mainland China tax laws. AR BT RN EE S E EBER 2BRT
Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on BERHE -
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been HE _Z-—NF+_A=+—HItF
provided as the Group had no assessable profit arising B AXREBVTEELSREEENE
in or derived from Hong Kong for the year ended 31 AN BEMNESHIERE(ZE
December 2014 (2013: Nil). —=F )
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
(restated)
(i &%)
Current tax: REHIR:
- Mainland China taxation — R EFIA 651 690
Adjustments in respect of prior years: VAR 2 A%
— Mainland China taxation — IR 47 64
Deferred tax: RERIA:
Origination and reversal of temporary TR E R ES KERE
differences (42,721) (5,322)
Income tax credit FTiSTiE1E (42,023) (4,568)
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31

32

162 Burwill Hoidings Limited & #2827 IR 24 &

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

31

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

FR@MER (&)

AEEABIRPISH AR 2 HIAER
ERAARAALBERZREMAEZ

tax rate of the home country of the Company as follows: BB ZBEOT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT
(restated)
(&&&E7)
Loss before income tax BrPTS TR AT E 18 (487,486) (76,538)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% B E16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) (ZE—=%F:16.5%)
=& (80,435) (12,629)
Effect of different taxation rates in other HEBRNEFE
countries -7 (32,546) (1,781)
Income not subject to taxation MEIRTRE 2 WA (879) (281)
Expenses not deductible for taxation LIE Y4
purposes S H 57,805 2,272
Unrecognised tax losses REERTIIE 13,211 9,243
Adjustments in respect of prior years VAR [E FR % 47 64
Others Eve 774 (1,456)
Tax credit HREEE (42,023) (4,568)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 32 FAFEEBEARMGESIR

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of a loss of approximately HK$540,840,000 (2013:

HK$575,140,000).

ERARBFBIRE R Z AR AL
A AFEL B 18 E 48 540,840,000
L (=ZZF— =% : % ¥ 575,140,000
JT) °
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33 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

34

33

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are calculated
by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

SER(BR) 2%

FREAREE(ER)  AMNBEAD
AR A ARG (ER) BT - R
EFEAREETE B INEFHEE G

=
Ean

2014 2013
(restated)
(E5)
Loss from continuing operations attributable 7N &Iz AJE(G K
to owners of the Company (HK$'000) BREECEXEBER
(BT IT) (344,813) (66,163)
Profit from discontinued operation RARERIFE AR
attributable to owners of the Company BERILEEEBRT
(HK$'000) (BE¥ETT) 65,685 62,496
Loss attributable to owners of the Company ZNA ARz #EH A FE(E
(HK$'000) BECE®TT) (279,128) (3,667)
Weighted average number of BT BRI
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) EHg(Fst) 4,586,712 4,461,613
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share FAE AR N #E (518)
(HK cents) AR OB
From continuing operations REFHEC ST (7.52) (1.48)
From discontinued operations REDRIEEEETK 1.43 1.40
(6.09) (0.08)

The outstanding share options during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2014 have an anti-dilutive effect on

the basic loss per share.

DIVIDENDS

34

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:

Nil).

BHE-_ZT—=RkK-_Z—NE+=-A
—t—BIEFRERITENBERESS
MERBEFEREEER -

B2
EEZRTHRBE_ZT—NF+_A

Tt+—BLEFEERGRERE(ZE
—=F )
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35 REReRERNE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEEEENRS
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(EB)/&F (349,617) 19,511
Adjustments for: FHEE
 Tax R (10,136) 26,474
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% - eSS R
equipment IE 8,352 9,138
— Amortisation — 5 7,457 7,190
— Property, plant and equipment impairment  —¥)% - #2838
charge B 190,614 -
— Intangible assets impairment charge —EEEERE 182,334 -
— Gains on disposal of property, plant and —HEME - HBELK
equipment 2 W (117) 9)
— Gain on disposal of club debentures —HESHESFZ
Wegs (650) -
— Share option expenses — RS 18,173 -
— Fair value gains on investment properties ~ —#RK&EMERN RN F(E
W25 (82,908) (84,632)
— Fair value gains on financial assets at fair ~ —I& A F{EFE BB
value through profit or loss IRHMBEE
DA (3,037) (4,909)
— Fair value losses on derivative financial — TSR TEY
instruments NHEEBE 43,025 8,031
— Dividends received from financial assets at — UgEUIR A F(EHEBE
fair value through profit or loss w=FIIRE B TS & B
[d5) (122) (17)
— Interest income — M EHA (1,232) (1,793)
— Finance costs — R E PR 43,648 44,071
— Share of losses/(profits) of associates — PGB & A A
B8 (&) 459 (799)
— Provision for impairment of accounts — FEWIRIE R ERE
receivable 3,062 105
— Provision for inventories —FEREE = 320
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — GNEE T SRS 7 2 A 690 (576)
49,995 22,105
Changes in working capital: LEESET
— Inventories —-FE8 34,158 30,007
— Bills and accounts receivable — R IE R FEWRTE (230,379) 59,017
— Deposits, prepayments and other &% BRRK
receivables HeRUER (10,388) (21,299)
— Bills and accounts payable — R R R ERRIA 252,690 (62,544)
— Other payables and accruals —H e EIRE R ERT
E=g=2 5,498 (16,141)
- Due to an associate — REFE N E A 88 =
Cash generated from operations EEEARNIRE 101,662 11,145
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

equivalents

REReRBRME(E)

(b) BeRAeFRMBBRSN

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose FIRERERM S
of the statement of cash flows: ReERBEEED
LU
Continuing operations FFEAR SRR
Cash at banks and on hand BRITMEFERES 126,766 142,335
Short-term bank deposits RERRITER 2,226 22,657
Discontinued operations E AR IFASE 2T
Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRS 16,161 -
145,153 164,992
Less: Pledged bank deposits o ERRITER (1,716) (22,657)
Bank overdrafts RITEX (997) (4)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFED 142,440 142,331
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 AERBRAR
(a) Operating lease commitments — where the (a) EEHERE-FTREHEEHEA
Group is the lessee
At 31 December 2014, the Group had future R-ZE—NFEF+_-_A=+—H8 &
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- ERBENAIHE SEREMNAR

(b)

cancellable operating leases as follows:

R 2 RAEHENK@RILT

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Not later than one year TiBiE—F 7,572 7,133
Later than one year and not later than —FRETBARFT
five years 19,257 15,663
Over five years BiBERF 11,799 14,277
38,628 37,073
Operating leases — where the Group is the (b) BEHE-FKREAHHBEAA
lessor
The Group leases its investment properties which AEBUKERERAEEE S HE
are included in assets of disposal group classified AEEEEEEMIREYZE (M
as held for sale (Note 19) under operating lease 19) o
arrangements.
At 31 December 2014, the Group had future minimum RN_E—NFE+_A=+—H8 &
lease payments receivable under non-cancellable ERBEARHGE 2 SEREMNRAR
operating leases as follows: REM 2 BB ENFBRELT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Not later than one year NiBiE—F 35,566 37,794
Later than one year and not BiE—F
later than five years EBETNBBRF 30,970 39,701
Over five years HBidBAF 848 1,247
67,384 78,742
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(b)

(d)

36 RiERBRAMRE)

Operating leases — where the Group is the (b) SEBEHE-FEEEHBAE)
lessor (continued)
Contingent-based rents recognised in the consolidated RIEFEERABEROIAERL
income statement were approximately HK$3,764,000 BB H3,764,000( —F—=4F :
(2013: HK$4,234,000). 7B#£4,234,0007T) °
Financial guarantees () MBEFE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Guarantees given to banks REEMEEES
for mortgage facilities granted BB E M ERTT
to the buyers of the Group’s properties {7 &R 95 97
In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities EERR - FABERR —REBB
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in BRTeEAEREE  MAKE
the ordinary course of business and the fair value FTR B S 1R 2 A BB -
of the financial guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts (d) EHINEEK

At 31 December 2014, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts with a maximum aggregate
notional amounts of US dollar of 1,500,000,
8,250,000 and 9,305,000 against HK dollar, RMB
and EURO, respectively.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts with a maximum aggregate
notional amounts of US dollar of 19,500,000,
52,000,000 and 4,650,000 against HK dollar, RMB
and Euro, respectively.

R-ZF-—OE+-_H=+—8"
REBREITHRBINES L%
B AExZ AR AD 51,500,000
8,250,000 }% 9,305,000 3 Jt ¥ /&
7T ARBREUT °

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H =&
SEREBETHERBINES LFEPE
AR %AEEASR19,500,000
52,000,000 K 4,650,000 3% 7t 4 76
T ARBREUT °
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36

37

38

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(e) Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land
appreciation tax amounted to approximately
HK$30,954,000 (2013: HK$31,747,000).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
acquired an additional 30% equity interest in Dor
Uluslararasi Tasimacilik Madencilik Ve Dis Ticaret Anonim
Sirketi (“DOR"). The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests in DOR on the date of acquisition
was approximately HK$1,555,000. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$1,555,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to
owners of the Group of approximately HK$1,555,000.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2014, the following assets were
pledged:

(a) Certain leasehold land, land use rights and
buildings with a net book amount of approximately
HK$75,883,000 (2013: HK$91,619,000);

(b) A motor vehicle with a net book amount of
approximately HK$168,000 (2013: HK$679,000);

(c) Certain short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,716,000 (2013: HK$22,657,000);

(d) Certain land use rights, buildings and investment
properties included in assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale of approximately
HK$1,057,752,000 (2013: Nil); and

(e) Certain bills and accounts receivable of
approximately HK$285,979,000 (2013: Nil).
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36

37

38

RERURARE)

(e) NRAR

R-BE—MNE+—_A=+—H ' &
EEEBETPE T HIEERNSAE
BE4)75%30,954,000t(— T —=
£ ¢ B#31,747,0007T) ©

BIFRRERTH

YRR E R 2 F o B Sk i

RZE—=F+-A=+—HL#HF
W AN & B W T Dor Uluslararasi
Tasimacilik Madencilik Ve Dis Ticaret
Anonim Sirketi ([ DOR J) Z84N30% A% A<
o RUE B E X - DORAYIEIEARHE
I 2 WREE 497 #1,555,0007T A%
] e TR FE AR AR A 2 U IR T (B 3G N A0 B HE
1,555,000t M FERAEEIFAEALZ
MR D #)48 % 1,555,0007T °

REEH

RZZE—NF+-_A=+—H
ED T

ATE

(a) HMEELH - THFERERET
IR F B 48 #75,883,0007C ( —
T—=4 : #%91,619,0007T) :

(b) REWRE FE4E ¥ 168,000 T
—TE—=%: B¥679,0007T) :

(© =% 8 R 17
1 7160007@<—T—7¢ :
22,657,0007T)

TERDOEE
B’

d OO BEAFAEEENLHF
A BFEREEVENSE
1,057,752,000c (=& — =4 :
') R

(e) *Bfﬁﬁéuﬂzmﬁ&ﬁéuﬂlﬁlﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%
285,979,000 L ( =& — =
;) o
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39 FEAXS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2014:

(a) Related party transactions which were carried
out in the normal course of the Group’s

(b)

business are as follows:

BRiraHEHRERETHI>EHEEN K
EBREBEE_T—NUF+_A=+—H
FTFEECETUTEREBEALR
% H

(a) BEM—BERIERTETZME
BERHWMT :

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Rental income received from an associate & UgHE4 A TS WA 5,264 4,907
Service income received from an associate ©UkEE N TR TS UL A 716 714
Interest income received from an associate B YgHhe A 715 8 A 254 198

The associate was transferred to assets of disposal
group classified as held for sale during the year

ended 31 December 2014 (Note 19).

These related party transactions did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange.

Compensation to key management personnel

HE_ZT-NF+-_A=t+—Hi
FEZBENFREDERFERE
BE(MFE19) -

WRIBHE S A8 55 £ AR RIS 14A

B HERENRSTERESH

(b) EEEEASHS

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Wages and salaries FeTE 22,311 21,246
Pension costs — defined contribution IRRACAR — RE MK

plans st &l 892 910

Staff welfare B4 854 1,116

Employee share option benefits BB AR ERA 7,538 -

31,595 23,272
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Corporate guarantees

39 REAREH(E)
(c) AFIEE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
EWTT BT T
Guarantees for general banking facilities A& QA RHRITHE &
and loan facilities granted to associates BB E{EH 7 1R 489,285 11,160

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.

(d) Details of loan to a former director of the
Company (2013: a director of the Company),

E=R5 LREFRN—REHB
BRTEEASEAAE  MAKHE
Pri i R AR R 2 R FEEDK -

(d) REAFGAMABBENLAFES
(ZB—Z%F : 2FEE)HRLZ

disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, HEmT :

are as follows:

Name of borrower YIN Mark

BRALEH FriT

Position Executive Director

21v2 WITES

(Note (i)
(K1)

Terms of the loan

BEREEE
—interest rate 4% per annum
— A= FEME
—security unsecured
— EAKHR
—repayment term 3 years
— B =%F
—borrowing date 25 April 2013
— &% H —E—=FWMA=+HH

Balance of loan in respect of principal
—at 31 December 2014 HK$490,000
—-RZE-—WF+_HA=+—H 75 #490,0007T
—at 31 December 2013 HK$817,000
—-RZEBE—=F+"HA=+—H 75#817,0007T

Maximum balance outstanding during the year HK$817,000

FRN& =R KE 7E#817,0007T

Note: Hiat -

(i) Resigned on 12 March 2014.
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Schedule of Properties held for Sale

FEMER—ER

Address
o dt

537 Wenchang Road Central,

Lease

HWER

Medium lease

Gross Group’s

Existing use floor area interest
RITHE BREEE SEEs
Commercial 52,769 m? 69%

Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province, FRERFR 49 PH¥ 52,769 5K
China

PEDTIEE

BN

X & BE5375%

* The property is included in assets of disposal group classified as held for sale in the consolidated financial statements.

ERaUBHRE  WEIADBAGTEEEEE -
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Five Years’ Financial Summary

AFMBEERE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEBBEAEVBRFECXE  BEERB
financial years are as follows: BT :
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT O BETT
Results ¥5
Turnover e
Continuing operations FIEIE TS 6,215,085 4,466,188 4,844,364 7,570,889 6,036,704
Discontinued operations BRI 82,452 81,987 71,960 52,265 43,370
(Loss)/Profit attributable to (BB, BARER
owners of the Company KRR AIERIFE AR
arises from: g:
Continuing operations SELEER (344,813)  (66,163)  (507,341) (341,425 508,210
Discontinued operations B FE T 65,685 62,496 42,286 36,738 41,234
(279,128) (3,667)  (465,055)  (304,687) 549,444
(Loss)/Profit attributable to (B18)/ BASEN
Non-controlling interests FEIE A (70,489) 23,178 7,247 12,483 14,820
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(BR)/&BF (349,617) 19,511 (457,808)  (292,204) 564,264
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE 384,841 1,804,955 1,671,482 2,021,916 1,908,966
Current assets TEVEE 2,838,305 1,568,815 1,733,207 2,022,876 2,502,844
Total assets wEE 3,223,146 3,373,770 3,404,689 4,044,792 4,411,810
Non-current liabilities FERBELE 61,091 456,839 455,695 415,136 550,719
Current liabilities mEaE 1,679,271 1,074,724 1,206,017 1,363,063 1,599,825
Total liabilities HBEE 1,740,362 1,531,563 1,661,712 1,778,199 2,150,544
Total equity o 1,482,784 1,842,207 1,742,977 2,266,593 2,261,266
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